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_ _ RCi Insurance Limited
Annual report and-financial statéments from™ January 2023 1o 31 December 2023

Directors’ Report

The Ditettorg presenit the annual report-and the audited financial statements of RCI Insurance Limited {the-"Company") for
the yearended 31 December 2023. '

Principal activities

The Company's principal activity is that of carrying on: business of insurance.and reinsurance:falling within Classes 1, 2
‘and. 16 of the Insurance Business Act, Cap.403 of the Laws of Malta.

Reviewof the businiess

This is the fourteenth year of operation of the Company, with the: Company. wiiting direct insurance businisss-in Gentiany,
France, [taly; Spain; Romania, Austria and Porfugai, The-Company also: writes busingss of reinsurance in France and
‘Germany and from this year also in Italy. o

During the year énded 31 December 2023 the Company wrote'a fotal net insurance service resuit 0f€122,528,171-up' by
9% compared to that writien during. 2022 at €102,705,633. This: is the first-presentation .of the results. folfowing the.
transition from IFRS4 fo IFRS7, which-as is explained in.more-detail in Note'2;2 has created an impact on the figires s
from this year.

The Compariy's net invéstmerit income increased by 788% to €6,102,026 in:2023 (2022 increased by 66% 1o €686,854):

The total prgﬁt-‘-fc_s__r the year after tax am‘p_untéd to € 83,637,501 (2022 re-slated; €67,205;116). THe increassin profitability:
Is mainly attributabie to-the Tactors explained above. '

The Shareholders' Funds of the Gompany. at€195,095,480 {2022 re-stated: €175,283,217) incredsed by 12.10% (2022:
20:20%) resulting from betier profit after tax registered during the year.under review:and a further capital. contribution of
€8.453,275 made. during the yéar 2023 (2022 €8,828,334),

As -of 1 January 2016;.the: Sclvency. | Difective (2000/138/EC) came irito force with new regulatory requirements that
ascertain the level of capital required on thé basis of the risks the:Company undertakés. Solvéncy I also outiines how the
own funds shall bé derived by converting the Statement"of Financial Position from-an IFRS perspective to one where
assets.and liabilities are measured in line- with their uriderlying economic valle..As from this date, the solvency calculations
under Selvency | regime are no fonger appiicable. - '

Baged on the sudited Solvency Capital Reguirements ("SCR") calculstions -as -at 31 December 2023; the. Company. has'
complied with the capital and selvency. requirements as stipulated in the-rules issued by the MFSA: Going fofward; the
Company is also expected:to cantinue:meeting the Solvency il requirements; based an the projected SCR calculations
included in the:2023.Own Risk and Solvency Assessment (‘CRSA”) report: )

Principal risks’

The Company is exposed to a mixed blend of risks and hence operates a risk managemient strategy with the chjective of
controlling and'minimising their impact-on the financial performance and position of the Company.

An established risk governance framework: and ownership structure ensures oversight of accountability for the effective
management-of risk. In line with the Solvency II framework; the Company's. risk management framework fosters the
cortinuous monitering .of the risk environment and anintegrated evaluation: of risks and their interactioiis.

The Company's risk- management framework. is désigned fo' provide -appropfiate risk monitoring: and ‘asessment.
Specifically, the Company’s main risks: are insurance risk, credit risk, market risk and liquidity fisk, A detailed feview of the.
risk- management policies employed by the Compariy dre disclosed in. Note: 18. While disclosures refating to exposures to
insurance-rigk, credit risk, figuidity. risk and market risk-are included in Note 19, These are also suppleménted by Nots 2.5
-relating to the matérial éécounting palicies.
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Directors’ Report- continued

Future developments

The Board has considered the Company's operational performance and position as at year end, as well as business plans
for the upcoming years. In line with this, the Board has a reasonable expectation that the Company has adequate
resources to continue in operational existence for the foreseeable future. For this reason, in preparing the financial
statements, the Board continues to adopt the going concern basis in preparing the financial statements.

Post balance sheet events

There were no important events or transactions which took place after the financial reporting date which would require
disclosure or adjustment to the financial statements.

Results and dividends

The results for the year are set out in the Profit and Loss on pages 5 and 6. During the year, the Board declared and paid
out an interim dividend of €76,847,995 (2022: €74,072,773). The Directors do not recommend the payment of a final
dividend.

Directors

The Directors of the Company who held office during the year were:

Mr Patrick Claude

Mr Thomas Groleau

Mr John Bonett
Mr Pierre Yves Francois Philippe Beaufils (resigned on 26" February 2024)

Auditors

At the 2023 Annual General Meeting, a resolution was presented proposing the appointment of Mazars Malta as Auditors
as from the financial year ending 31 December 2023. The Directors take the opportunity to express their gratitude to
Mazars Malta for their service to the Company and the Shareholders.

By order of the Board

G o heie

Thomas Groleau Patrick Claude
Director Director
Registered office

Level 3, Mercury Tower,

The Exchange Financial and Business Centre,
Triq Elia Zammit,

St.Julians, STJ 3155

Maita

19™ April 2024
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Statement of Directors’ Responsibilities for the financial
statements

The Birédtors ate requiréd by the ‘Companies Act {Cap. 385:0f the Laws of. Malta) and the: Insurance Bussness Act (Gap.
403 of the Laws of Malta) to prepare financial statements. in actardance with International Financial Reporting Standards
("IFRSS“) as adopted by’ the EU, which give a true and fair view of the state of affaits of the Company at the‘end of éach
financial year and af the profit of loss of the Company for the year then ended. in préparing the financial: statements, the
Directors shouid:

+ selectsuitable accounting policies and apply them consistently;

* make ;udgements and-estimates that are reasonable;

e preparethe financial statements on a gomg concern basm unless itis lnapproprlate to presume that the:
Company will contmue in business as'a going: concarh;

« account for incame and charges refating to the' acc:ountlng year on the atcrials basis;

« value separately the compornents of asset arid liability items; and.

»  repor comparative figures corresponding to:thase of the preceding accounting.year,

The. Directors are responsmle far ensuring that proper accounting records are: kept which disclose with reasonable
accuracy at any tie the financiat position of the Company -and which: enable. the Directors to énsure that the financial
statements: comgly:-with.the Companies Act (Cap. 386 of the- Laws 6f Malta).and the: Insurance Business-Act (Cap. 403 6f
the: Laws of Malta). This résponsibifity includes designing, |mplementlng and- malntalnlng such lntemal control as ‘the
Directors” determine is necessary to enable the. preparation -of fi nancial - statements that are free from material
misstaternent, whether due to: fraud 'of efror. The: Direttors .are also: responsible: for safeguardmg thie ‘#isséts of the
Compariy, and hence for tak:ng Teasopable steps for the’ preventlon and detéction of fraud and cther irregularities.
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Statement of Profit and Loss

CSM Fecognized for services provided

Change in risk adjustment for non-financial risk for risk expired.

Expected insurance service expenses lncurred
Efaims

Expenses
Recovery of insurance acquisition cash flows
TOTAL INSURANCE REVENUE

Incurred insurance service expenses:

it : . .

Expenses o _

Oihermovements refaled to current service

-Amortisation of insurance acquisition cash flows'
Changes that relate to past service:

Changes iy astimates.in L!C fuffiiment cash Hows
Expeience.adiusiments in claims and ofhier insurancé seérvice expensesin LIE

Chariges that relate-to future service:
Lnsses and reversal of fosses on gnerous contracts - subsequent measurement

TOTAL INSURANCE SERVICE EXPENSES

Net Expensés fromi Reinsurance. Coritracts:
Allocation of the: premiums paid-

Amounts recoveréd from reinsurance’
Encurred insurance service expenses:
Claims:

Other movements refated o current service

Changes that relate to- past §ervice (chianges in fulfilment cash

flows re LIC):
Changes in estimates in'LiC fulfiment cash fiows .
Exgenience att:usfments i cldims #t Olher insurance’ service-gxpenses: LIC.

Total net-expenses from reinsurance contracts

INSURANCE SERVICE RESULT

Year ended 31 December

123,254,394

2023 2022
- restated.
€ €
412,750,488 109,904,922
903,770 1,156,944
26,839,866 25,341,016
17,676,505 15,867,249
9163367 947767
50,307,525 50,016,817
190,801,649 186,419,699
(28,907,401 (34,263,196}
{18.305,495) (24,085:419)
110, 716 798} (10,856,747}
114,894 -GB8.970
(50,307,525) {50,016,817)
16,690,895 101,546
19,765,264 ‘{1,340,689)
(3,074,369) 1.442:235
{299,705) {671,307)
(299.705) (671,307}
(62;823,737) {84,848,774)
(2,122,031) {1,670,201)
{2,601,487) 2,653,140
1,761,352 3,073,038
1,769,621 3,125,255
(8.269) (53.217):
{4,362,839) (413,898)
1.971,821) {658 824)
B0R.952 244,826
{4,723,518) 988,940
102,558,865
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Annual report and financial statefments from 1 January: 2023 t¢ 31 Decémber2023.

Statement of Proflt and LOoSS - continued

INSURANCE SERVICE RESULT - continued

Insurance finahce income or expensés. from irisurance

-contracts issued _

‘Interest accreled on the cariying amourtof the GSM

Anlerast accreled on presemt value cash flows

Interest-accreled on sk adjustment

“The effect of financial risk and changes in financial risk

Total Insurance: Finance Income or Expense from [psurance
Contracts

Ihsurance finance -incdine of expenses from reinsurance
contractsissued

Intereist accreted on'the canying amaunl of tie LSM

Inferest accreted on présent valug cash fows

Interest accreted on 'rr‘sk=at{;_‘_z:stmenr.'

The'effect of financial risk and changes in financial risk

Total Insurance Finance Income or Expense from: Reinsurance:

Contracts
'NET FINANCIAL RESULT

NET  INSURANCE {EXCLUDING

I NCE  SERVICE
INVESTMENT RETURN).

RESULT

NET INVESTMENT INCOME
‘PROFIT BEFORE TAX

INCOME TAX EXPENSE

PROFIT FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR

Notes

15

18

Yearended 31 December

2023

€
123,254,394
{804,059)

(3,407,234).
2710438,

(65:126)

(15,127)

2022

- restate
€

102,558,865

67,076
802,328
{736,856)
'3,404

{804,059

67,076

18,836
2,167

67,034
8,763

1Ty

79,691
R
L6178

2,769

{725,223)

146,767

5-1(7_25,-2'2'3)"

146,767

122,529,471

102,705,632

6,102,026

686,854

{44,993,696)

103,392,486

(36,187,370)

83,637,501

67,205,118

Theaccompanying accouriting policies and explanatory notes on pages 11 to 52 form an-integral part of the-financial staterments.




RCI Insurance Limited

Annual ;eport and fi nancnal statemenls from 1.January-2023 to 31 December 2023

Statement of Comprehensive Income

PROFIT FOR THE FINANCIAL.YEAR {page 6)
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

Net gain-on investrients in debt sécurities measuréd at FVOCI
Finance expenses’ from insurance contracts issued

‘Finance incoime from reinsurarice contracts lssued
income-tax relating to these items.above:

OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FOR. THE YEAR; NET
OF TAX.

TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FOR THE YEAR TOQ
‘ORDINARY SHAREHOLDERS

Year ended 31 December-

2023 2002
- restated
€ €
83,637,501 67,205.116
2,648,025 {5,364, 780}.
4, 133, M7 {f, 369 323)
249 147 (638,712)
{2,460,5686) 4,680,483
4,569,623 {8,692,332)
88,207,124 58,512,784

The-accompanying accounting policies and explanalory nofes on'pages 11 to 52 form an integral part of the financial statements.
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-Annual feport and financial statemenits from 4. January 2023 {e 31 December 2023

Statement of Changes in Equity

-Share Retained Capttal Other Total Equity.
" Capltal Earriings:  Contribution Reserves '
_ ' Resérve: .
£ € £ £ €

Shareholders. equity as-at 1-January 2022 4,000,000 96515523 51,331;328 (20,689) 1458261160

Adjusiment-orviritial appfication-of (FRS17, net
offax. ' '

T

36,088,708 . - 36,088,708

E‘;l;at;%gglders:edﬂima's at'1 Jandary 2022, 4,000,000, 125,504,231 51,334,338 (20,683 181,914,868

Profitfer the year - 67205116 - g 67,205,116
Ottier &oimprehensive incore - - (8692332)  (8:602,332).
Dividends paid oy L gaorzrrs)
Gapital contribtition 8,928,434 - 8,928,334

4,000,000 419,736,574 60,259,660 (8,713,021): 175,283,213

Re-stated Closing Balance — 31 December _ _ o o o
2022 4,000,000 119,736,574 60,259,660. 8;713,021) 175283213

Profit for the year _ - 83,837,501 - . 83,637,501
Other-comprehensive income - s - 4,569,623 4,569,623

Divigends paid - (76,847,895) - - {76,847,995)
Capita) contribution < - 8,453,275 8,453,275

Closing Balance - 31 December 2023 | 400,000 126,526,080 68712935  (4,143,398) 195095617

The accompanying accounting policies dnd explanatory notes on pages 11 to 52 form an integral part of the financial stafements:




RCI Insurance Limited
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Statement of Financial Position

ASSETS

Cash and cash equivalents
Financial investments

Loans and receivables
Reinsurance contract assets
Insurance and other receivables
Deferred tax asset

Property, plant and equipment

Total assets

EQUITY

Capital and reserves attributable to shareholders
Share capital

Capital contribution

Other reserves

Retained earnings

Total equity

LIABILITIES

Current income tax liabilities
Insurance and other payables
Insurance contract liabilities
Deferred tax liabilities

Total liabilities

Total equity and liabilities

The accounting policies and explanatory notes on pages 11 to 52 form an integral part of the financial statements.

Notes

—
=SB R

11

13

o~

As at 31 As at 31 Asat1
December December January
2023 2022 - 2022 —
restated restated

€ € €
117,640,000 78,988,978 83,642,274
102,463,844 91,202,768 72,805,579
81,500,000 79,000,000 88,000,000
22,026,910 12,020,721 16,716,151
42,669,232 46,376,041 41,495,412
2,403,552 4,836,756 104,862
1,759 4,391 18,973
368,705,297 312,429,655 302,783,251
4,000,000 4,000,000 4,000,000
68,712,935 60,259,660 51,331,326
(4,143,388) (8,713,021) (20,689)
126,526,080 119,736,574 126,604,231
195,095,617 175,283,213 181,914,868
59,260,988 41,429 576 40,091,334
49,904,822 32,299,835 35,072,585
64,443,870 49 176,962 26,272,083

- 14,240,069 19,432,381
173,609,680 137,146,442 120,868,383
368,705,297 312,429,655 302,783,251

The financial statements on pages 5 fo 52 were authorised for issue by the Board on 19™ April 2024 and were signed on

its behalf by:

Thomas Groleau
Director

Patrick Claude
Director
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Statement of Cash Flows

Qperating astivities o
Cash generated from operating activities-
Interest received

Taxation. paid

Net cash from operating activities
Investing activities -
Purchase of finansial investments
Redemption.of financidl.investments cn.maturity
Net cash used in investing activities
Firidancing activities

Dividends paid __

Capital Contributien paid

Net ¢ash Osed in financing activities
Net movement in ¢ash and.cash equivalents:
Cash and cash equivalents - Beginning of year

Gash .and cash eguivalénts.- End of year:

The:aceaounting policies-and explanatory notes or pages: 11 -{o- 52 fo_rm-_ an-integral part of the ﬁhan_c_."a}*. Stafemen_t_s.

Notées

29

24
12

Year ended 31 December

2023
153,210,019

| 6,325,707
44,429,576)

2022
- restatéd
€
114,366,709
- 1,796,172

{40,092,839)

118,406,150

76,070,042

(50,450,408)
39,400,000

(70,488,899)

54.910,000

(11,060,408)

(15578,899)

{76,847,995)

8,453,275

(74,072,773)

8,628,334

(68,394,720}

(65.144,439)

38,651,022

3,354,722

78,988,578

83:642,274

117,640,000

78,988,978

A0
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Annual repon and finangiai statements from: 1 January 2023 to: 31 December 2023

Notes to the Financial Statements
1. Corporate information
RCI Insurance: Limited (thie “Company”) is a-fimited liability company incorporated and domiciied in Mafta: The.Company's

principal. activity is that of canying en business of insurance and reinsurance falling within Classes. 1,.2 and 16 ‘of the
Insurance Busmess Act, Cap.403 of the Laws of Malta.

The registered office of the - ‘Campany is Level'3, Mercury Towar, The Exchangé Finandial and Busingss-Centre; Triq Elia
Zammit,"St.Julians, Malta. The financial statements of RG| Insurance Limited for- the'yearended 31 December 2023 ‘were
authorised for issue in accordance with a resotution. of 1he Directars on 19% April 2024,

RCI Insurance: Limited is-a wholly-owned subsidiary. of RCI Seivices letted WhiCh is registered at Level 3, ‘Mercury Tower,
The Exchange Finandial and Business Centre, "Triq Elia Zammit, St.Julians, Maita. The ultimate parent company .of RCI
Insurance Limited is Renawt S.A, whish i§ registered at 13, ‘Quai Alphanse Le Gallo, Boulogne: Billancourt,. Hauts De.
Beine; France 92100;

2.1 Basis of preparation

The.financial statements have. been prepared on a historic cost basis except for ﬁnanc:al lnvestments that have been
measured at fair value,

Statement of compliaice.

Thie. ﬂnaaclal statemenis of the: Company have been prepared in accordance with: International Financial Reporting
Standards: (IFRSS” ) as.adopted: by the European Union, the Insurance Business: Act and the Maltese Gompanies.Act, Cap
403 and-386 of the Laws of Malta respectively.

The Company presents its- Statement. of: Fmanmal Position. ‘broadly in arder of Ilqwdity An analysis regarding recovery of
settlement within twelve months-after the: reportlng date {current) and more than.-12.months after the reperting date (non-
current) is. presented within the: hotes to the financial statements.

Financial assets and financial liabilities. are offset and:the net amount is reportedin the: Btatement of F!nanmal Pasitign
only.- when there is.a Iega!iy enforcéable right to offset the recogmsecl ‘amounts-and thiere is :an intention'to-setile on a net.
basis, or {0 realise the assets and setile the liability simultanéausly, Income and expenses will:not be offset i the Income
Statement unless required or permitted by any-accounting standard or -interpretationi, as’ specifically disclosed in the
‘aceounting. policies of the Company.

2.2 Main IFRS re_.q_'ljiremen'ts' adopted on January 1, 2023

IERS17 — Insurance Contracts

Published on May 18,.2017 and-amended by the amendmenis:of June-25, 2020, sets ot the principles .of recognition,
-evaluation, presentation and ‘information to be provided for insurance coniracts: It replaces the IFRS 4 standard -
Insurance.contracts and is’ applicable fiom January 1, 2023 It should be noted that RE! Insurance had nat retained the:
propesed exemption from application of the. IFRSY staridard and was already applying it IFRS:9 standard since: January 1,
2018: The introduction of IFRS17 therefore leads to the discontinuation of the overtay appreach previously: applied.

Imiplementation at RCI Malta

IFRS 17 mainly.applies within the graup fo tnsurance canfracts issued and refnsurance freaties- iSSUEd andfar held by the
group's insurancé companies. Given the nature of insurance and reinsurance portfohos - contracts lasting more than 1
yeéar with & rion-linear fisk profile - their technical provisions are evaluated accordlng to the general measurement model
"GMM” (known as the *building blocks appreach’) including;

(1) estimates of futdire.cash flows discounted and weighted by their probability-of realizafion (“PV. FCF™),

(2) an adjustmient for non-financial risk (“RA”) and

(3} the:coniraciual service margln CEMY,

There is no-participatory contract in the RCI Malta: portfoho justifying ihe application of the “VFA - ‘Variable Fee. Approach”
mbdel.. No contraict is évaluated according to fhé “PAA - Premiiun allocation Approach® model, tod.

1



RG insurance:Limlted
Annual Téport-and Fnanclal statements fram- 1 January 2023 to 31 December 2023.

2.2 Main IFRS requirements adopfed on January 1, 2023 — continued

The margin on: contractual services' ("CSM"} will ‘be recngnlzed in the income statefnent based on the coverage units
provided over the penod - ‘“Coverage Units pattern”. A unit-of coverage.is the quantlty of ‘coverage provided by the.
contracts in the group,: determined by consideting for each contract the: quantlty of the: benefits providéd under & contract
and its expected coverage period. No'onerous contracts hiave been’ |dentlr ed by the-group as part-of the transition.’

Annual contract cohioris
In accordance with the standard, techinical provisions are evaiuated by homogenecus groups of contracts by grouping fnito
annual cohorts based on:

- contracts-carrying similar rigks and managed togethier,

- and pait of the same profitability group.

The insurance portiolio does not present a cahort of onerous coritracts at the:date of transition.

Cash flow {BE —~Best Estimate)

The eéstimate ‘of futurg cash flows from- insurance portfnllos are: obtained by projecting annual cohofls: of contracts
according. to-models which reflect “the behavior” of insurance centracts. These picjection models. are’ based on the samée:
foundations as those used for Salvency (I Galculations. These modéls were the' subject 6f an éxternal réview in 2023.

Risk Adjustment (RA)

The non-financia! risk adjustment is-determined to compensate far the uncertainty inhérént in the amounts and timing of
pro;ected cash flows. It is based-on the abserved distribution of the frequeney of claims, representing the main risk factor-
of the insurance portfolio'and is calibratéd on quantile of 90% (80%.of confidence: mterval) consistent with the risk-appstite
rules and the benchmark of companies with the similat product portfolio, The fisk. adjustment i8- ‘amortized actording to:the.
same profile as the “CEM”,

Contractual Service: Margin (CSM)

The contractual service margin. represenis the part of the profits made.an the insurance contracts taken:out, which will be.
deferred and progresswely carried forward {0 incomeé stafeément .over. the esfimated life of the .insurance contracts.- It is
defined wheh contracts are taken out and:evolves during the ife of: {he contracts depending on differences.in expesience
arid hypotheses with what was ‘originally expected.

Cover uiijts

The coverage. units make at passibile 1o measure. the risk coverage periods for revenue recognition’ (CSM). These: cuverage
units are: based: on the. risk-profile of the annuas cohorts of contracts by con3|der|ng the profile .of {he. Sum-at:Risk, Risk
ad;ustment is-also recogmzed accordmg 1o the samé profile:

Dlscount rafe

The discount rates are defined using the “bcttom»up miethod to which:an illiguidity premium is ddded on top 6f the: risk-free
rate curve defined by EIOPA. Illlqutdlty premium has been défived fram Market price curve by using Mertan-siructural
credif risk model & CoC ‘adjustment for removing: thie “expected” default probability: & credit.risk-premia for (un-)expected
losses ("top-down ‘approach”).

Oc| opfion
The effect.of financial tisk and- ehanges in financial risk, due to the differences-betwéen locked-in and discolnt rates of the
reporting peried, has been- reported through Equity ~ Other ComprehensiVe Income:in Balance Sheét.

Treatment of internal margins .
The treatment. of internal marglns correspands only to the restatement of disteibution commissions paid by the group 's
insurance comparies o the grolip's subsidiaties.

Ralevant accounting. esﬂmates

Al the undertying technical assumptions: for calculating future .cash flows from'insurance portfolios are'defined based.on
stafistical studies 6n portfollo datarand represent the: best estimate of these elements.at the calcutation date.

The financial :assumpt_ions are based on dat'a__prdvided:-by- the regulator and market data retained by 'the group:

The adoption 6f [FRS17 tesults in. 5|gnzf‘ cant accounting changes; with-an impact on RCI Insusance's balance:sheet,. profit
and-loss.and cther.comprehensive income, The nature and-effecis of these changes are-summarizéd below.

12



RCI Insurance Limited
Annual report-and financial statements- from 1 January- 2623 to. 31 Decembier 2023

2.2 Main IFRS requiremernits adopted on January 1, 2023 - continued

Impacts of adoption of IFRS17 at the transition date {January 1,2022

The restated balance sheét as-at January 1,:2022, compared to the balance shieet as at December 31, 2021 as published,
highlights the following impacts of IFRS17 attransition date:

‘December 31, 2021 January 1,2022 Impact of the
{publlshed}a (restated} restatement
€ €
ASSETS |
Eguipment - 18,973 18,973 =
Deferred acqisition. costs 51,467,900 . 51,467,900
Loaris and receivables 88,000,000 88,000,000" -
Financial investments 72,805,579 72,805,579 -
Deferred tax asset o 104,862 104,882
Reinstrer's shiaré of techhical provisions: 30,446,677 - 30,446 6?7
Reinsurance contract-assets - 16,716,151 {18, ?16 151)
Insurance and. other receivables 41,485,412, 41,495,412
CaSh and cash equivalents 83,642,274, 83,642,274 -
TOTAL ASSETS. 367,981,677 302,783,251 65,198,426
EQUITY"
Capital-and reserves attr:butable to-sharéholders S i}
Share capital 4,000,000 4,000,000 -
‘Capital-contributior 51,331,326 51,331,326 -
Othier reserves {20,689) (20, 689) -
‘Retained earrings 80,515,523 126,604,231 36,088,708
TOTAL EQUITY 145,826,160 181,914,868 36,088,708
LIABILITIES
“Technical provisions: 139,942,361 - (139,042 361)
Deferred revenue 10,131,387 - 10;131.387}
Insurance contract liabilities - 26,272,083 26,272,083
Deferred-tax liabilities upon-transition _ - 19,432,381 19:432,387
Insurance and other. payables. 31,990,435 35,072,585 {3,082,150)
Currenttax liabilities 40,091,334 40,091,334 ' -
TOTAL LIABILITIES. 222,155,517 120,868,383 101,287,134
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 367,981,677 302,783,251 65,198,426

Overall Profitability IFRS17 vs. IFRS4 ~ Comiparisori as.of FY2022

Qveralt profitability is likely to be- very simiar under the: curenit and preévious. IFRS4 approach. However, the timing would’
differ under the two ‘approaches.

As of F¥2021, more rapid recognition of . past pruﬁis has been recognized under IFRS17, due’ to the nature of the RCI
Insurance's business, further: explained below. Therefare, the- pasitive impact ori eqwty has béen Teported as a transifion
impact. Consequently, the level of GSM feprésenting. the. Expéected Future Profits of group:of contracts has begn reduced.
by 36 million euros (‘Transition impact’}, which. was one-of the main. reasons of declining the préfit as of FY2022,. by'@
million stras ompared to previous IERS4 approach,

‘Even though the. recognition of profit is *faster’ under. IFRS17 approach, dug to'the: profile ‘of the coverage. units
corresponding the evolution of the: outstanding finance. capltal (sum-at ~risk), the pruduchon of ngw busmesses only partially
offsét thé fotat variarice of profits bétween IFRS17 and IFRS4 in 2022:
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2.2 Main [FRS requirements adopted on January 1, 2023 - continued

Main changes resulting from the-adoption of IFRS 17

IFRS. 17 establishes the pririciples for. the récognition, measurement, -presentation and disclasure. ofinsurance contracts
and supersedés IFRS 4. - Ihsurance Contracts. i aims at bemg more economic -and better reflecting the underlying
prafitability of the business, while’ |ncreasfng Compar'abillly atross the industry.

‘As the application of IFRS17 is retrospective to.January. 1 2022, RCI Insurance considered that obtaining all the-historical
-data required for the estimation of contracts i the: porffeilu' at the transition. date. was riat possibie using ‘the Full
Retraspective Approach (“FRA") without incurfing ‘excessive costs and- eforts. Therefore; tHe Modified Retrospéctive
Approach ("MRA™ was retained and applied to the erttire stope concerned 1o agcotnt: for the impact of the transition on
the acgountsas of January1, 2022.

The impact of the transition generates a pogilive riét effest on' shareholders' equity of 36 million euros in. the opening
balarice sheet as of January 1,.2022.

:Thls posmve effect on equity comes flfom & more rapid recognltler; of profits under 1FRSA7 linked to the profite of the
coverage units. which. refléct, over the duration of ‘the insurance conifacts, the: décrease in the stms under risk,
corrésponding: to: the evolution” of the outstariding:finance- amounts. Under IFRS4, insurance premiums arg acquired
-acgording to a linear profile.

As required by IFRS17, the comparative financial statemints have been restated ta consider ‘the application of. the
standard-as of January 1,°2022. JFRS17 fechinical previsions as of 3111212022 were defined by the -application of the
generdl modef to the porffollo hased or'the opening balance sheet resultmg from the transition on 01/01/2022.

Furthermore, in the stéternent of profit or logs, insurance revenue will not reflect the prafiums-Underwtitten dufing the year
but the premiums eamed during the’ penod net .of any: investment component,. corresponding. te the release of ‘the
fulfilment cash-fiows (. e the expected cash’ ﬂows of the period plus the related release of tisk adjustrrient | for non-ﬁnenmal
rigk} and the CSM.

2.3 Other-Standards, interpretations and amendments to published standards as ‘endorsed by the
European Union effective inthe current year

The overall accounting pelicies are ¢onsistent with those of the previous financial year.

Several othet iew staridards, amendments.and inferpretations to emstlng standards, apply for:the-first timein 2023 whese
adoption to the requirements: of IFRSs as .adopied by the EU did not result in. substantia) chariges to the Ccmpanys
accounting policies and did not. |mpacl the financial statefments.

. Amendmerits to! 1AS: 1 -Presentation &f Financial Stateménts and IFRS: Practice. Statemient:2:. Disclasure of
‘Aceouriting’ pollmes tissued on 12 February 2021)-(effective on 1 January 2023)

Previously, an entity was required ‘to disclose: in its financiai statements its maferial accounting policies; with' the
amendments an entity will now be required-to disclose its material accounting, policiés,

Paragraphs are added to- explain. how an. entlty identifies material accounting. policies along with added éxamples to
explain whén accounting policy infafmation-is likely to become: material, focusing '6n concepts Suéh- as that accounting
pclicy information becomes matefial because of its nature; even if the related amounts are immaterial.

Additionally, {FRS. Practice -Statement 2 has ‘been amended thrdugh added guidance and EXamples fo -explaiir and
illustrate the: application -of the ‘four-step matenality procésy' to accounting policy infermation i -air of supporting the
amendments to 1AS 4.

U Amendments to IAS8: Account:ng policies, Changes i in Aecountlng Estimates and’ Errors: Definition ‘of Accounting
‘Estimates (issued on. 12 February 2027) (effective-eri 1 January 2023}

The amendments:to |AS 8 focus entirely on-accounting estimates with the- definition .of 2 change i in aceaunting estimates
being replaced with a definition of actounting estimates, Accounting estimates are. now defined as “monetary amounts:in
financial statements that are subject'to measurement uncertainty”.
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2.3 Other: Standards, interpretations: and amendments to published standards as endorsed by the
Furopean Union.effective in the.current year - continued

Accounting estimates arise when accounting policies require-items in- financial statementsto be measured in a way that
involves measurement. uncertalnty ‘The ameéfidments: élarify that'a change iri ‘accolnting estimate that results fromi new
infarmation: or NeEw develdpmeits is hot-the toiection of an error and that the éffects of a change in an input or &
measurement method-used to derive an. accounting estimate are changes in. accounting eshmates if they do not result
from the comection af prior perlod errars. The effect of the change relating to the. current period s recognlsed as income or
‘expense.in the: clrrent period. The:effect; if any, ‘on futire periods js recognised ds income or.experisé in those futlre
periods.

. Amendments to 1AS 12 Incomie Taxes! Deferred Tax related to- Assels and. Liabilities® arising from-a Slngle
Transaction (issued on 7-May 2021 (effective on 1 January 2023)

The amendments narrow the scope:of the recognition exemption-in paragraph 15 of 1AS. 24 (recognition .éxemption) so.
that: |t np longer applies fa transactions that, on initial recognition, give rise to ‘equal taxable and deductible ternporary
differences.

“The ‘Cormpany had not early adopted. these revisions 1o the requirements of IFRSs as. adopted-by the EU. and the
Company's Directors are of.the opinion- that, there are no requwements that will have-a possible significant impact onthe
-Company s ﬁnanmal statements in the penod of mmal appllcatlon

The application of hese amendments did ot have a material effect on the Company's financia) statements.

Standards,; interpretations and amendments to piblished standards as adopted by the EU in issité but not yet
-effective for financial periods beginning on 1 January 2023:

Certain néw standards; amendments and interpretations to -existing -staridards have. been published by the- date. of
authorisation for issue of theése financial statements but hot yet effective for financial perictis .beg'inn‘ing on 1 January.2023;

- Amendments 10 1AS 12 Income Taxes: Internatlonal tax. reform- Pillar Two model {published on 23 May 2023}
(effective on'1 January: 2{324)

The-amendments introduce a. mandatory temparary excepfion fib IAS12 from recogriizing and disclosing. deferred ‘fax
-assets and.deferred tax liabilities arising from the implementation of the OECD Pillar Two model: rules. They also introduce:
-somé disclosure requirements for affected entities. The.amendments. have not yetbeen endorsed by the Européan. Uriipi.

When the tax’ Ieglslatlon is.effective; the current tax expense (income) related to Pillar Two income taxes will have to.be-
disciosed: separately. In the: meantime, in penods in‘which Pillar Twao legislation is enacted or substantwely enacted, but
notyet.in effect, the. IAS12-arnendments require disclosing known orreasotiably estimable information that' helps.users of
the ﬂnanmal stalements understand the entity’s exposure to. Pillar Two income taxes. arising from that legistation: These
disclosures are- requared for annual’ reportlng periods begmmng on or after 1 January 2023

-Standards, interpretations and amendments issued by the lntemaﬁona! Accounting Standards Board (IASB) but'
not yet adopted Hy the European. Umron

s Amendments:to JAS 1 Presentation-of Financial Statemerits:-Classification of Liabilities &s Current or Nen-current
(issued on 23 Janudry 2020, Classification of Liabilities as Curdent or Nen-curent - Deferval of Effective Date.
{issued ‘on 15 July: 2020} and Non-Cuirent Liabitities with Covenants {issued on 31 October2020) — effective on 1
January.2024,

. Amendments {0 IAST =~ Statement of Gash flows and IFRS7 = Financial msiruments Dlsclosures (1ssued on-25
May 2023) — eﬁectlve on 1 January 2024,

‘The Directors are assessmg the impact that the: -adoption of these Financial Reporting Standards will have'in the: ﬁnanclal
staterents of the:Company in the-period of initial application.
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2.4 Significant accounting judgments, estimates and assumptions

The preparation: of thé Company's financial statements requires managenent to. make judgments, estimates and
assuniptions thataffect he reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities and the disclosure:of contingent
liabiliies, atthe reparing date: However, uncertainty. about these assumptions and. estimates-could result in outcomes that
could reqmre a material ad;ustment to the carrying amount.of the asset or fiability affected in:the future.

Judgments

In the process of applying the Cotmpany's accounting policies, managenent has made.the following Judgments apart from’
those involving estimations. and assumptions, which have d significant-effect: o the amounts recognized.in the financial

statements.
Estimates and assumptions

The key assumptions canceming the future.and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the reporting date; that have:
a sngnlﬁcant risk of cauging-a material -adjustment to-the: carrying amounts.of assets and liabilities within the next financial
year aré discussed below.

All-assumptions representmg inputs of the projéction models under]ymg the Fulfi Ilment of ¢ash-flows-(“FCF") are based on
statistics performed on: portfolic data dnd are subject of annual internal review as well ds the ‘exiernal audit review. RC)
Insurance used these set-of assumptions, 5pI1t per non- -sconomic and économic, as follows:

Non-economic

1. Incidence rates & Claim duration — Disability
a. In 2023, incidence rates for Total Temporary Dlsablhty, Permanent Tatal Disability and ¢laim duration
update have been.performed-for all countries;
b; The observed period.Jan-2020 and Jun- 2023 has been analyzed The incidence rate assumptions were
set for each country as-an average' annual incidence rate between 2020 — 2022, af stabilized level
compared to the previous year, in the level 0,.03% - 0.8% pia., pet country portfolio.

‘2. ‘Incidence rates: & Claim duration— Unemployment
a In 2023 mcrdence rates and claim duration update for Unemployment covérage have beéen performed
b, The ebserued perxod Jan-2020 -and June - 2023 has. been analyzed. The incidence rate aesumphone
were se’( for- each couniry as-an average annual incidence rate between 2020 — 2022 at-stabilized level
compared o the previous year, in the levél € 0.5% p.a. per triain. countriés Franée and Germany:and
2.2% p.a.in Spain.

3. Claim Acceptancerates

a. Acceptance rates calculation is based:-on all-data-histery. in¢luding.a- breakdown of "Drop claims” status:
Best Eslimate’ has been taken as the average of yearly ‘acceptance rates in 2020 — 2023 pefiod withaut
any adjustments for all countries; except France.

b. In'caseof Frange and due'to’thie change in operational process for French Death portfolio starting in the:
end of 2021, the continuous incréasé of the Death Acceptdancé rate hag beén ocbserved, reaching thé
level more fhan 75% observed in.2023.

c. In other portfohoe stabilization of claim acceptance rates has-been observed compared to the previous
year; in therangé.of 80 — 85% for Beath coverage Av..in thé rangeé of 70-75% for Disability covérage and
25:45% for Unemployment coverage.. ' '
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2.4 Significant accounting judgments, estimates and assumptions - continued

Estimates and assumptions

4. Lapse rates.
a. lapse rates are defined per country, contract duration and: development year (in which year of the
. -cOnfract the. Iapse has. occurred)
b. Lapse rates:are'derived based. dn:
i. the portfolio hsstory to.catch’ the dlstnbutlon structure-of the- lapse rate:per finanging duration
and contract: development year
fi. an adjustment coefficient so that the global portolio lapse rate’ targets the' more reécent lapsé
rate observed on the portfolio.
c. ‘Compared fo the previous year, the movement of: Iapse rates have been observed within the interval <-
1%, 1%> pia. Slight worse-trend was’ highlighted in France and: Germany, whereas better development
was stimated in italian and Spanigh portfolm

8, General Expenses:
a. General expenses . assumptlons have been based on the budget forecast-of general expenses of RCI
Malta for.2024, split by nature,
b.  Onhis volume of general expenses, setting the expense assumptions consists in:
. ldentificatign of fixed: expenses part by defnlng the fixed expenses: which remain. if the
company is under a run-off mode.
i Split-general eéxpenses: by company & Insufance/Reinsurance activity.
il Split each nature of expense by destination (Acquisition, Administration, Claim ‘management,
Financial)..
W. Split EXpenses’ by destination by country.
V. Split expenses by produu:tfcoverage
vi. Calculate.unit cost from floating/vaiiable expenses according fa partfolio: data,
c. -All expenses-arethen modetled as-unit costs, per policy and specific country

Economic:

Discount rates

The application: gmdance in IFRS 17:B80-B85 outlines. twa mzin methods of how tosset discount rates under IFRS17: Top-
Dowit.and Bottomn-Uj approach.

Due t'ti the'inabiiity td’ﬁn"d a répli'c'atihg 'in'ves't'ment'porl'foli'rij'that ma'tche's; t’h'e’cUrreh’cy, tiqllidity' a"ri'd' dur’atio’h charaCtEristics"
Therefore, the company has opted for the ‘Bottom-up” approach i deriving the discount rate-1d be applied in‘terms.of [FRS
17 para..36. The process can be split.into two key:derivation steps _'naméqy; (a) Risk-frée raté:and.(b).Liquidity: prefmium..
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2.4 Significant accounting judgments, estimates and assumptions - continued
Ecnnomfc-'(:bﬁﬁnyed
Discount rates— continued
() Risk-free Rate
“Thie risk-fres rate _-:(IRF'R} of refurn is the interest rate an investor cari’expéct to earn.on an investment that carfes zero risk.
i The:Company's 'a'pprb'a'ﬁhls:{c ulilize the EIOPA RFRs. The key reasoris far.this are:
- Belng derived. usmg a: de:-ngnated reference portfolio of assets for which thére exists obsérvable active market'

pricés.
* An adjustment of a risk-free yield curve, threugh the volahllty adjustment, for the differenices in. {iniing and
uncertalnty characteristics of its insurance contract liabilities is- consistent with-the- IFRS17 bottom-up approach.
+ Being areadily observable.level 2 maiket input, this approach fends itself relatively easier fo audit-and be deemed

dccéptable. by auditors.
i, E|OPA RFRs.are readily.available fora: range’ of currencies, lncludlng EUR, the currenicy used by the Company.
iii;  The: EtOPA RFRs:are released ona regular basis, on. the thh‘d working day of each month, appropriately:fitting with the
Company s regorting fimelines.

i, Itwill providi consistencybetween Sil'and IFRS17..

v.  EIOPA RFRs are to be widely used by.other:similar insurers in-the market.

vi.  There isiiittle: benef‘ Lin. denumg another set of very simifar aiiemaﬂve RFRs, the: derlvatlon of which

' walld ihcrease pressures on meetlng reporllng fimelines.

{b) Liquidity premium
The Institute and Faculty of Actuaries (IFOA} IFRS17-working party defines the liquidity fisk premium (LP)-as:
Liquidity fisk premitnm = y’fe}?d fo matﬂﬁty. on réference -po_rtfojf."o - -ri‘sk freé rate' = credit risk premiumy

The IFRS17 Standard -does not prescribe a particular method to- calculate the: credit risk premium. The [FoA: paper
howaver suggests the: followmg methods to consider for the calculatlon of the credit Fisk: premium;

»  Expected loss given default based on historical data
¢ Corporate bond spread
«  Credit Default Swap {CDS) spreads

The Company's approach is fo utilize the Moody's Liquidity. Premia.salution*: The key reasons for this-are:

i The methodology s reftective of the-.company's own asset porifolio. Given that:RCI's Investments follow anasset-liability
matching approach, this salisfies the IFRS17 requirement. of .adopting discount rates which reflect the. liguidity

~ charagteristics of insurance contracts.

ii. The fact that MA provides its L|qun'hty ‘Premia solution on a. quarierly basis is considered -as -apprepriate for the,
Company. béing aligried with. the. frequency. at which ‘the company monjtors its. mvestment holdmg weightings: (dunng
Solvency Il calculation runs)

* Moody's Analytics (MA) adopt a weighted average cost of capital approagh to estimating credit risk premia, may be
used as an npiit info deriving the Liguidity Premia.
MA's risk- premia- may be provided far each relevant currency (including EUR) on @ quarteriy basis. as. an off-the-sheif

saolition package Within:this ‘Solution, Liquidity Premias’ aré ‘calculated for a number of borids: ¢overityg an appropriate
range of durations and credit ratings. The relevant weightings by duration and credit raling may be adjusted to.reflect the

Company 5 oW mvestment hoidlngs within.its asset porifolio,
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2.4 Significarit accounting judginents, estimates and assumptions = continued

in addition; the Contractual- Service. Margin (“CSM")
3 represents the part of the profits made on-the insurance. contracts: taken out, which will bé deferred and
progressively carried forward to income statement over the: estimated life of the insurance:contiacts.
= recognition of the: ‘GSM:in profit-or loss under the: general measurement model is determined by’ ‘allocating the
balance to coverage units, which are:based on: the guantily of benefits provided undet the ‘contracts; and the
cohtratis' expedted: duratlon

The Gontract boundary for insurance contract is defined as. fallows:
% The Company is responsible for approving a néw insurance pivduct, change of a preduct or-création/modification
of any. insurance tariff, linked to the financing. of ¢ars (credit, leasing): by the Group. No stand-alone insurance
program. is alowed to be launched by the Company outside the client-base of the Group.

ThErefore

Contract. boundary for Premium refated cash: flows:

»  Premium is collected over ‘the period of thee ﬁnancmg duration on.a monthly basis or as a sihgle
premium (up-front) - at inception date of the insifance. contract, which. is .equal to the
commencement date of the financing contractrespective delivery. of the car to the: pollcyholder

= Therefore, the right of receiving premium is_fixed by the end of the instirance- contract and no
_premiurm is allowed 1o be collected after the-termination date:

»  Acquisition commissions ‘aré due right after the collestion - af: premium ‘and. therefore, no
actuisition costs can be incurred:before the start of {he insurance contract.

ii. Confract boundary for Incurred claims related cash-flows:
= Accordlng to the insurance palicy, the:maximur eligibility date for the.occurrence of any-claim
is the date.of the termination of the insurance contract; i.e. this is the date until when the entity
has a substantme obhgaﬂon 1o prowde theé insuranice contract senvices:
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2.4 Significant accounting judgments, estimates and assumptions - continued

Valuation of insurance contract liabilities
Life Insurance and reinsurance contracts cover a fixed term in line with the underlying credit or lease period insured.

Life insurance and reinsurance contract liabilities are recognized accounted under a forward-looking Economical Value
approach in IFRS17 vs. historical valuation in IFRS4 valid till the end of 2022.

IFRS 17 requires insurance contracts to be measured using current estimates of future cash flows that are updated at the
end of each reporting period. The "book value balance sheet" has been replaced by an "economic balance sheet".

The main principle is that an insurance contract is measured using a current estimate of all expected cash flows within the
confract boundary that will arise as the contract is fulfiled. The General Measurement Model (GMM), also known as
Building Block Approach (BBA) is the general accounting approach for the measurement of insurance contracts under
IFRS 17, which has been implemented for whole portfolio of RCI Insurance.

Under the General Measurement Model (GMM), the liability projection involves a combination of several key components,
which collectively build up the liability for insurance contracts. These components include present value of expected future
cash flows, Risk Adjustment (RA) and Contractual Service Margin (CSM). The liability is discounted for the time value of
money, and it must reflect the liquidity characteristics of the insurance contracts. In addition, it has to be consistent with
market prices and exclude those factors in market prices which do not affect the insurance cashflows (e.g. credit risk).

Atinception date of the contract

Frofi thaat the imenney
R TSt ke chanrg
Future Cash thiss lifes ot The ponkroct
Outflows

sk Actustment

I uture Cash

Inflows

st B ubmnatee ool

2.5 Summary of material accounting policies

(a) Product classification

Insurance contracts and reinsurance contracts are those contracts in which the Company (the “insurer') has accepted
significant insurance risk from another party (the “policyholders®) by agreeing to compensate the policyholders if a
specified uncertain future event (the “insured event’) adversely affects the policyholders. As a general guideline, the
Company defines significant insurance risk as the possibility of having to compensate the policyholder if a specified
uncertain future event (the “insured event") adversely affects the policyholder.

The Company issues contracts that transfer significant insurance risk and has defined all its contracts as insurance/
reinsurance contracts. Life business consists of long-term policies that cover the lives of a group of customers for the year
under cover.

20



A

RCI. [nsurance Ltmited
Annual report and financial statements from 1 January 2023 ta 31 December2023.

‘which must be split. by

2.5 Summary of material accounting policies - continued
{a) Product classification
Insurance contract liabilities: Direct & Reinsurarice corntracts held

All- instirance. contract liabilities {“Technical provisions”y shouid be calcufated and reported by Unit of Account (“UoA”),

¥ type.ofrisk: (.LDB Y,
* @nnhual génération of contracts, o
»  group of profitability (‘Profitable”, “No significant possibility. of becoming onerous”, "Onerotis”):

‘Compenents of Instiraica :Contract liabilities  for Liability for Reniaining Coverage (“LRC”J, implemented. at RC
Insuraiice consists of: 3 compenents or “building blocks” as shown below:

1). Best Estimate’ Liabifity (‘BEL") } Eulfilment Cash:Flows
2) Risk Adjustment (FRA") h '
3). Contractual Service:Margin {'CSM")

LRC:
Thig- correspernds to Unearned Premium Reserve.or UPR and relates {o {future service allocated to a group of insurance
contracts; plus.the GSM, where relevant.

Eulfiliment Cash:flows

Unbiased and probability-weighted-estimate (i.e. expected valie) of the present valug of the fulure cash outflows. minus the
present value of the fOture-¢ash inflows that will arise as theantity fulfils insurance contracts, including. a risk: adjustment

for non-financial rigk,

Best Esfifnate Liability ("BEL")

Cash Flows’ Related to. Direct” business: and-Reihsurance business {Reinstirance Contracts Held) are measured
and presented separately under IFRS 17.

BEL. represents an experience-based- projection of the discounted vaiue of expec:ted future . benéfits payable
deducted from the discounted value of the expected value of theoretical futute premiums.

The. discounted value-of the expected. ‘benefi ts payable and the discounted value. of the expecied theoretical.
‘premiums are based ‘on certain valuation assumpt:ons used, such as: interest rates, mortality” rates, incidence
rates;, .éxpenses, and lepse: rates, without any risk margin {the- margin is incorporated inthe RA).

Cash Flows.Included in Fulfilment. Cash Flows

(#) Pigmiums.

() Glaims. (claim payablés, futire: claims)

(Y Insurance Acquisition Costs {*Acg. Gommissions’ )

'( } Claim Handling Costs

() Palicy-Administration and Maintenarice Costs - Directly Attributable

(+) Profit Share-from Technical results of reinsurance (PPt & GAP. business ~ Reinsurance outwards)
¢y Remsuranc.e -commission & Re:nsurance fee- (GAF‘ busmess Reinsurance Inwards)
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2:5 Summary of material accounting policies - continued

{(a) Prodict classification —continued

- Cash Flows Not Included in Fulfiiment Cash Flows

X Investment income. S
- Cash Flows relatéd 16 Future. Ihsurance: Contracts -

x Income. Tax Payments and Receipts
Discounting

The discount rates are defined using the “botiorrhup method to'which anilliquidity premmm is'added on tap of the risk-free.
rate clrve defined by EIORA. Hiquidity premium has been derived-on quarterly review basis by “top=down” approach, from
Market price curve,:by remaving the “expected” default prcbablllty & credit risk premia,

Risk Adjustment ('RA")

RA is-defined as a compensatlon the entity requires for bearing the uncertainty abott the amount and timing of the tash
flows that arises from nion-financial rigk as the entity fulfils insurance contracts.-
of the frequency for clalms represents the maln rlsk factor of the- msurance pDrlfDllo

Atgording fo the Tisk appetite rules ang '_the'-be'm;'hmark_ of companies with-the similar product portfolio; the RA is caliprated
on guantile'of 50% (80% of cenfidence interval}.

_Contiactual -S'ENIé’E'-'MéQ;;in: {'CSMY)

CSM represents the Unearned Profit for a Group of Insurance Contracts.

CSM equals. to the Present Valge of Future Profits of the Group of Insurance Contracts at. inception, when profit: is.
amortized over the life.of the coniracts.

Amortization of CSM is.doné based -on thesrigk profile.of the dannial cohorts of contracts -by-'-.c‘_on's_ideri'ng'_t'he'-.p_roﬁle-'ofﬂfthe'
Sum-at-Risk. Risk adjustment is also recognized according to the same profile. Refer to the:section on-Estimates and
Assumptions.

Components of Insurance Cortract liabilities for Liabilify for. iricurred Claims. (“LIC") implemented at RC| Insutancs are:
described below::

1) Best Estimate Liability ulfitiment Cash-Flows.
2) Risk-Adjustment } Fulfliment Gash-Flows

LIG: . o y . . o
corresponds to Unpaid: Loss ‘and comprises the fulfilment cash flows reflated to past service -allocated to a portfolio -of
insurance contracls.
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RClInsisrange Limited
Annual report and financial statements from 1 January 2023 to 31 Dacember 2023

2.5 Summary of material accounting policies - continued
{a) Product classification— continued

Eulfilment Cash Flows

Cash flows are. represented by:claims. mcurred but not yet paid, derived from: clalms paid triangles. per. cohort, country, and
coverages..

Main inputs required are: o
> Claims payments from Datawarehouse (DWH")
¥ Qut of system Payments provided by the Operational team.
¥ LIC projection temiplates split pef Annual coharts of group of contracts.
Outputs. expected are:
= Aﬁer the calcutation- process {generating cash- Alow) is complate, it is expected fo. have ail teguited input files to be
upload the accounting software Risk Integrity.

» Once the run of the pro_|ect is completed,.all technical accounts linked 1o the inicurred claims (currént and past
services) are-part:of the féchnical Balance sheet and P&L.as Insurance Service Results.

Discaunting .

The discount rates are defined using the: “boﬂomﬁup method to which an’ |Ilth|d1ty premiur is added-ontop of the rlsk-free.
raté curve defined by EIOPA. llliquidity premium has been derived. quarterly review by *top-down" approach, from Market-
prlce curve for removing the “expected” default probability-& credit risk‘premia.

Risk Adjustment (‘RA")

RA is-defined as a'compersation; the entity fequires for bearing the uncéertainty atiout the amount and timing of the cash
flows that arises fram:non-finaneiat risk as the entity fulfils insurance conftracts.

RA is calciilated based an the Mack Method of Reserving, using: the-calibration of 1ognormai distribution &t 80%: quantlie
applied'on future’ cashflows: of ¢laims.

(ad} Recognition and measurement of insurance and:reinsurance contracts
The company recognises groups of insurance contracts issued from the earliest-of the following dates:

-+ The beginning of the‘toverage period-of the group of contracts

-+ The:date-whien the first:payment froin a pohcyholder becories dug (in the absénce. of a contractual dug date; this
is' deemedto'be when the first: payment-is recgived)

+ The date when:the group of contracts becomes onerous.

The company-recagnises: only contracts issued within a.oné-year period. meeting the recognmcn criteria but the reportlng
date (*annual cohorts").,

{a.ii) Presentation of insurance and reinsurarnce confracts

The company has presented separately:i in the statement of financial position the: carrying amount: of aggregated Jportfolios.
of insurance contracts thatare‘assets and thosé that are liabilittes; and the portfolics.of reinsurance contracts held that are
assets and those that are liabilities,

The company shiows separately the-amounts. rer.:ogmseci in the statement of prof it or loss.and dther comprehenswe income
jnto ‘an insurance service résult ‘sub-total that compnses insurance revenue and insurance service expenses and,
separafely from ihe insurance: service resulf, the "net insurance finance incomé or expenses! sub:total. The company has
included the neti insurance finance income.or ‘expenses I|ne in-ancther subtota! net insurance-and investment result, which
also includes the income from ail the assets backiig the compaiy's insurance liabilitiss.
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Rl insurance. Limited
Annual teport.and financial statements from 1 January 2023.to-31 Daceniber 2023

2.5 Summary. of material accounting policies - continued
{a) 'Préduct classification — continued
Re‘ceivab'fes -and payables related to ingurance and reinsurance accegi_an_qa ‘contracts
Receivables and payables are recognised when due. These include amourits diié to and from intermediaries.

If there is objective evidence-that an insurance receivable is impaired, the Company: reduces-the. carrying amount of the:
insurance receivable. accordtngly apid recognizes that lmpalrmant loss in the Income Statemerit. The Company gathersthe
objective evidence that an insurance receivable is impaired-using the same process adopted:for financial agseis held at
amortised cost.

The'impatrment ldss is-caleulated following the-same method used:for financial assets.
{b) Intangible assets

Intangible assets acquited separately dre measured on inifial recognition ‘at cost. Following initial recognition,. intangible:
assets are carried at'cost less any accumulated amortisation and any accumulated impairment:losses. The uséeful tives of
intangible assets are assessed to. be finite,

!ntanglble assetls with finite lives are amortised. over-the useful economic jifé-and.assessed. for impaisment whergver there
is: @n-indication that the. intangible asset may be-impaired. The: amortisation :year and the ambortisation ‘method for an
intangible ‘asset with a finite useful. Ilfe_ are reviewed at least at each financial year: end. Changes inv the expected useful life
or the expected pattern of consumptich of futlire esonomic: benefits embodied ih the ‘asset is. accourited for by changing,
the ‘amortisation year of iethod, s appropnate and are treated as changes: in accountmg astimates. The amortisation
expense on intangible ‘assefs wuh finite lives is recognised-in. the Income Statement in the -expense category consistent
with the intangible‘asset.

Gains or Josses arising from derécoghition of an intangible assét are measured as the difference bétwaen the nét d|sposal
proteeds and the carrying amount of the asset and are fecognized in the Income: Statement when ihe asset is

derecognized.

{c) Taxes

Current income tax

Current intoine tax assets and liabilities for the current.year are. measured. af:the:amount expected to be recovered from.or.
paid-to the faxation authorities. The tax ralés and tax. laws tsed to compute the -amouiit are. those ihai are enactéd. or
substantwaly enacted af the reporting.date.

Gurrent.income tax relating taitems recognised directly in equity-is recognised in equity and.not in the Income ‘Statemerit.
Deferred income fax

Deferred income:tax.is provided using the |Iabl|ily method on temporary différences at the reparting date between the téx
bases of agsets and liabilifies and their carfying amounts for firancial. reporing purpases.
Deferred incame ax liabilities are recognised for all taxable:temporary differences, except:

« When the deferred iricome- tax liability arises.from the-initial recognition of goodwill: or of .an. asset or liability-in a
transaction that is: nota business combination and, -at the time of the transaction, affects rgither the acceynting: profit
nortaxable profit-or loss; and
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RCI Insurance Limlted
Annual réport-and finahcial staterents. from 1-January 2023 to.31 December 2025

2.5 Summary of material accounting .:__po!_i'cie's ~confinued
{c} Taxes ~ continued.
Deferred income tax — continued

= In respect of iaxable temporary dafferences associated with; investments in subsidiaries, associates’ -and interests in Jolnl_
ventures, when the timing of the reversal of the temporary differences.can be controlled and it is probabfe that the
‘temporary différénces will not reverse in the foréseeable future.

Deferred income tax assets are recognised for-all deductible temporary differences, carry forward of unused tax credits
and unused tax losses, to:the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available. against which the deduclible
temporary-différerices, and the carry forward of unusid tax credits and unused tax [osses can be utilized.

The carrying amount of deferred incore tax assets is reviewed at-each reporting date and reduced to the extent that it is
no lénger probable-that sufficient taxable: profit witl be available to alfow all or pari-6f the defefred ihcoma tax asset to be.
utilised.. Unrecognised deferred jncoirie. tax asséts are reassessed at éach reporting date and are recognised to.the extent
that it has hecome probable that future taxable profit Wl|| aliow’ the: deferred tax asset to.be recovered.

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities. are-mieasuréd: at:the tax rates-that are. expected to apply to'the year when the
asset.is realised or the ||ab||tty is seffted, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively
enacted atthe reporting dafe,

Reférred income tak relating to tems recegnlsed directly in Other Comprehensive (ncome of equity is recognised in. Other’
Comprehensive Incofme or equity and notinthe Income Statement.

Deferred income tax assefs-and deferred income fax liabilities are offsef, if a legally. enforceable right exists to set off
current tax assets against eurrentincome taxliabiliies and.the deferred income taxés relate to the samé taxable enfity:and
the-same {axation authority..

The Company fias ‘applied a temporary rmandatory- relief {rom . deferfed tak acceunttng for ‘the impacts of the global
miritum top-up tax fequired under Pillar il legistation. ‘Should the Company be in- scope; it will dccount for it 45-a current
tax-wen it is incurred,

(d} Financial assets
Initiat recognitiori and subsequent measurement

The Company classifies its finaricial assets: into. loans and recsivables and financial investments; The classification is
dependent on the purpose for-which-the mvestments are acquired, The Company determines the classification of its.
finaricial assets at initial reécagnition.

The Company evaluated its- financial investments-whether the ahilily ‘and intention to seli themr in ‘the near term: is still
appropriate. All “regular way” purchases and sales of fi hangcial. assels are reeegnlzed at the trade- date, thatis, the date that
the (Jompanyr comimits to purchase or sell the asset. Regular way purchdses or sales are purchases or sales of firancial
assets that require delivery of assets within the time frame generally establishied by regulation or corivéntion in the market.
place:

Financial assets afe recognised-nitially at fair vafue plus, in the.case of investments riot at fair value through-profit-or. [oss,
directly: attributable transaction.costs. The Campany's financial assets include cash and short-term deposits, trade: and
other receivables, loan and other réceivables and quoted financial instruments.

Loans and receivables

Loans-and recéivables are non-derivative. financial assets with fixed er determinable payments that are not quoted in an
active market. Thése invéstments are initially: récognised at cost, being the fair value: of the' consideration paid for the-
acquisition of the investment. All transaction costs directly: attributable to'the acquisition are also included in the cost of the
mvestment After |n|t|al measurement Ioans and recewables are. measured at amomsed cost, uslng the effectwe lnterest

|mpe|red as well as through the: amomsatlon process
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Annua). report and Fnanmal statements.from 1 January:2023to 31 Dacember: 2023

2.5 Summary of material accounting policies - contintied
(d).Finantial assets — continued
Financial investments

Fmanmal investments are: non: derwatlue financial assets that are designated. as. fair value thrétigh other camprehensive
income, These investments are |nmally recorded at. fair value. After initial measurement; financial ‘investments are
measgured at fair value. Fair value ‘gains and losses are. reported-as a ‘separate. component in Other ‘Comprehensive
Income untll the- invéstment is derecognlsed or fhe investment is defermined o be impaired. On derecognition of
|mpa|rment the cumulative fair value gains and losses previously reported in equity. are: transferred 1o the: Income
Staternént,

{e) Fair.value of financial ifistruments

The fair value of financial instruments that are actlvely ‘traded in organised: financia) markets is determined by reference to.
quoted markeét bid pnces for assets and’ offer prices for. ||ab1I|hes at the close of husmess on the reporting date, without
any deduction for: transaction costs.

The fairvalue-of ﬂoatlng rate and overnight dep051ts with credit institations i is. their carrying value. The: carrymg value isthe
cost of the deposit anid. aceriied: interest.

If the fair- value:cannot. be measured rehably. these financial instrumients are measured at cost; being the fair valde of the.
consnderahon paid. for the acquisition- of the investment or-the amount received on issuing the financial liability.. Al
trapsaction costs directly attributable fothe acquisition afe aiso incliuded in the cost of. the investment.

An analysis of fair values-of financial instrumerits and further-details as to.how they «re measured are provided in Note 11,
() Impairment of financial assets.

The Company éssesses at each réparting date whethera financial asset ar group of financial assets j§ impaired;

Assets carried at amortised cost

if there:is objective evidence that an impairment loss on' asséts carried at amortised cost Hias been incurred, the amiouint of.
the impairment:loss.is measured as the differenice between the asset's earfying amount-aid. the. present va!ue of estimated
future cash flows (excludmg future expected credlt iosses that have not been incurred): discounted at the fi nanmal asset's:
original ‘effective ‘interest tate, The camyirig amaount of the assetis reduced and the loss. is recorded in the: Income
Statement.

The Company first assesses: whether objective. evidence of impairment exists individually for financial assets that are
Jdndivicually- significant, and individually -or collectively far: financial assets’ that are not individually significant. If it is
determined that ne: objeciwe evidence-of impairment exists for an’ ;nl:ifwdually assessed financial asset, whether significant.
or-not, the asset is-included in a grotp of financial assets- wﬁh similar credit risk characteristics and’ that group of financial
‘assets.is: collectlvely assessed for impairment. Assets that are |ndn..l'|duallyr asséssed for impairment and for which .an’
‘impairment: loss is, or confinues fo be, recognised are: not included in a collective ‘assessment ‘of impairment. The:
‘impairment assessment i 15 performed. at each reporting date.

IF, m a suhsequent year, the amount of the |mpa|rment loss decreases ‘and that decrease. can bé related objectively to. an
event: occuring. aftér the lmpalrment was. recognised, the previcusly recogmsed impairment loss s reversed. Any:
subsequent reversal of‘an impairment Joss is recagnised in the Incoime: Statement, ta the-extent that the -carrying valtie 6f:
‘the asset does not exceed its amortised costat the reversal date.

‘Financial investments
if a financial investmetit is impaired, an amount comprlsmg the différerice between its cost (het of‘any prlnclpa! repayment
dnd- amortlsatton) ard ‘its curent fair valug, less any impairment Joss prewously recogmsed in Qther Comprehenswe:

Incame, is transferred fiom equity: to'the Income Statement. Reversals in respect of equity instrumeénts ¢lassified as faif
vaiue through cther. comprehensive income are not recognlsed in the Income. Statement.

Reversals of impairment- Iosses on debt instruments classified at financial investments ‘are reversed through the Income:
Statemgnt if the increase. in-the fair value of the instruments can be objectively related to an event ocourring aﬂer the
‘impalrment losses were recognised inthe Income Statement;
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RC! Insurance Limited
_Annual répoit and financial statements from 1 January 20231431 December 2023

2.5 Summary of material- accounting poficies — coitinued
(g} Derecagnition of financial assets

A finaricial asset (or, when. applrcable a part of a fi nancral asset or part of a. group of similar fi nancial assels) is
derecognised . when:

The nghts fo receive cash’ ﬂnws from the asset have expired;
The Company- retains the nght to receive cash flows from the asset, but has asstméd an obirgatton fo pay them in full
wﬂhout material delay toa third party tirider a pass-through‘ arrangement and
» The Gompany has transferred jts- nghts t0. recaivé-cash flows fram the asset and either:’
»  hastransferred substantral[y afiithe risks.and rewards of the.asset, o
«  hasrgither transferred nor retained substaritially alf the risks and rewards of the asset, but has transferred conteol
of the asset.-

Wher the Company. has fransfetred its’ nght 1o receive cash flows, from arn: asset and has neither transferred nor retained
substantially all the-risks and rewards of the asset nior transferred control of the assel, the asset'is recognised 16 the' extént
of the Company’s confinuing involverrient in the dsset: Contiriuing involvement that takes the form: of & guarantee over the
{ransferied asset is measured at the lower of the priginal cartying amotint: of the asset-and ‘the: maximum amount of
-consideration that the Company: could be: reqmred torepay.

‘When contmumg involvement takes the.form of a written and/or purchased-option. (|nclud|ng -acash settled option &r similar

'provrsron) on the fransferred asset,‘the extent of e Company § ‘continuing involvement is the amaunt of ihe transferrad

asset that the Company may reépurchase; except that, in the case of a written put ‘option {including a cash settled option or
similar provision).on an: asset measured at fair value, the extent of the Company & coritiniing involvermnent is limited to the

Iower of the fair value of the transférred asset and the oplion exercise price.

(K) Impairment of non-financial. assets

The Gompany assesses at each reporting date whether there'is an indication that an asset may be impaired, If any such
indication exists, or when -annual impaimment testing for an asset is required, the Company estimates the -asset's
recoverable amount. An asset's recoverable. amaunt is the hrgher of an asset's or cash-generating unit's fair value less.”
tosts to sell ‘and its value in use. The recoverable amount is detérmined for an individual -asset,-inlgss the asset does not
generate cash inflows that are largely independent of those from other assets or groups of assets.

For assels excluding goodwill; an assessment is-made at each reporting date as to whether there is any tnd:catlon fhat
previously recognised impairment losses may:-no longer exist of may have decreased. If such indication exists, the
Company makes-an estimate of the recoverable amount, A previous lmpasrment loss is reversed only if thefe has. been a
change ir-the estimates used to- detérriing the assef's. recoverable amount since-the Jast. impairmerit loss:was recognised.
If that is the case, the carrying amount of theasset is incredsed 1o its recoverable amount.

That increased amount.cannot exceed the: r:.arrymg amount that would have- been: determined, net of depreciatiun, had no
lmpalrrnent logs been recognlsed for the asset'in prior years, Such teversal is récognised in the Iricome Statemént unless.
tlie asset is carried at révalued amounit, it Which ¢ase the feversal is‘treated.as-a-revaluation increase.

(i) Equipment

:Equment is stated at cost, excluding, the costs of day to day sepvicing, less accumutated depreciation and accumulated
impairment losses. Réplacément costs are’ capitalised when incurred and if it is. probable: that future economic benefits
associated with the.item will flow to the éntity and the cost of the item gan be'measured reliably.

Depreciation is provided an a straight line basis over the-useful lives of the following classes of assets:

o  Computerand electronic-equipment: 4 years
»  Furniture, fixture-and fittings: 8 years
. Electrical and plumbing instailations: B years

The:assels' residual values and usefl lives are reviewed and-adjusted if appiepriate at each financial year end:

'lrnpatrment reviews are performed when there are indicators that the cairying value may not-be recoverable, Impairment
losses are recognised: in.thé Income Statement as an.expense.
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Annual yéport:and. financial-statéménts from 1 January 2023 to 31 Decembér 2023.

2.5 Summary of material accounting policies — continued
(i) Equipment - continued

‘Equipment js- derecogmsed upon disposal or when no: further future: economic benefits ‘are expected: from its use or
disposal. Any gain or loss arising. on derecognltton of the asset {caleulated as. the difference between the net disposal
“proceeds arid the carmying amaount of the dsset) is includedin the Thcore Statement in-the year the assetis: derecognised:

{i} Insurance receivables

Insurance’ recewables are recognised when die and measured on initfal. récagnition-at-the fair vatug-of the consideration
received or recelvabie Subsequent tofnitial’ recognition, insurance receivables are measured at amortised cost, using the
effective inferest rate method. The cafrying value of instrance: receivables is rewewed for tmpalrment whenever-events or
circumstances indicedte that the carrylng amount-may not be recoverable, with the impairment !oss recorded in the Incnme
Statement.

(k) Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents: comprise: cash at.haik and in-hand atid-short-term depaosits with 2 maturity. of three’ menths or
less'in the: Statement of Financial Position..

{1} Other financial liabilities:and insurance payabies.

Other financial liabilities. and ‘insurance payable are reecognised when-due and measured-on initiad recégnition at-the-fair
value of the- consideration received less-directly atfiibutable transaction costs.. Subsequent to initial recagnition, they are
measured at amortlsed ccst using. the effeciive tnterest method,

{m) Berecognition of financial lfabilities and insurance:payables
Financial . lizbilities and insurance payables: are .derecognised when the obllgatlon under the lability is.-discharged,
cancellied or gxpired.

Whan the existing liabifity is replaced by ‘ahother from the samé lender on. substantlaily different tefms, or the terms of an
existing liability are substantially modified, stch.an exchange ‘or modification is treated as a dereccgnmon .of the. priginal
tiability and the recognition of a new Hability, and the difference in: the respective carrying_ amounts is recognised in the
Income ‘Statement,

{n} Equity movements

Ordinary share capital

The Tompany has issued ordmary shares that are classﬁ' ed. as equity: Incremental external costs that are directly’
attributable to the issue of these shares:are recogmsed in ecgiity, netof tax.

Dividends on ordinary share capital

Dividends on ordinary shates dré recogniséd: as: 2 lidbility dnd deducted. from. equﬂy when they are approved by the:
-Company s.shareholders. Interim dividénds are deducted from- equity when they are paid

{0} Revenues:from all insurance activities.
1) Insdgrance Revenue
For the General Measurement Model CGMM?Y, the insurance revenue: corresponds: {o the release of LRC, dependlng-

on the quantity of: prowded seivices, and-an.allocation of insurance dcquisition cash flows.

in. substance, the amounts refatecl ta:the- prowsmn of insurance centract semvices include:
. the expected clalms. including expenses other than insurance acquisition cash flows; but excluding
those not contributing to the fuliiiment-of insurance contracts (i.e. non- attnbutable expenses).
« the releasé of the risk adjustment for non-financial risk;
# thé allogation ofthe Contractuzl Sérvice Margin ("Csm "to.the period..
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Annual. repoﬂ and financial statéments from 1 Januiary.2023 to 31 Deceniber 2023

‘2.5 Summary of matetial accounting policies — continued
(o) Revenues from 4l insurance activities - c'onf_i'nug‘d
1} lnsurance Revenue - continuved

The affocation of insurance. acqutsmon cash flows represents the portion. of ‘premiums thatcorresponds to the recovering of
‘those .cash flows to each reporhng penad in a systematic way:based dn the' passage of time, the same “arount being
recognlzed &8 instrance seivice expenses, This mechanism enables to.add back the:part ofthe premium correspending to
the coverage of insurance acquisition cash flows. This means that insurance acqursmon cash flows are not recognized in
‘the statement of profit.or loss when the: acquasmon cash flows ocour but when the CSM is released,

(p) Expenses from all insurance activities
1} Insirance service expenses

'[nsurance service expenses ansmg from. groups. of contracis |ssued by RCI insurance are recognized.in the-staterment
-of :profit or loss -as they are incurred:, All insurance service éxpefnises correspond:to actual cash oufflows: within tfie
Boundary of contracts identified when projectmg and calculating the: present valye of future cash flows:

2) Netexpenses from reinsurance contracts held

‘In the statement of profit of loss, net’ expenses from reinsurance contracts held are presented separately from the
insurance service expenses. and included in a- single aggregate; correspondmg 1o the net between reinsurance service
expenses.and amounts recovered from the reinsurers.

3} Expénses:from_-other-'act'i'ﬁﬁ"es

The' expenses. from' other activities includé: claims handling costs and administtative expénses are considered as.
attiibutable costs, fully.allocated to.the group of contracts at the RCI Insurance portfolio,

() Financial resuit
1} Investmentyeturn

The investmient return recognized through profit or loss ‘Consists of:

» net invesiment income from- investments -othér than from Banking. activities, mciudmg the cost-of investment
activities not included. inthe’ futiilment cash flows (i;e. those nat performed for the benefit of pahcyhn[ders}
net of dapreclatmn expense on real estate investments: this ftem includes interest Teceived calculdted using
the effectwe interest method for.debt instriments and dividends recéived ‘on equity instruments;

¢ realized - gains and losses relatifig fo. invéstments at amortized cost and at - fair value through other
comprehiensive incomie (with recycting), net. of releases: of impairment: fallowing sales;

»  netiealized gains.and losses and changein fair value of investments at fair. valye through. profit o1 Joss; and

- change in impaifment on investments,

2) Nelfinance income or expenses from insurance and.reinsurance-contracts held

The net ﬁnance income. or expenses from.ingurarice and reingurance:contracts is presented in the statement of profit
of loss with & split: belween insdrance: contracts issued and reinsurancs-contracts held.

{r) Events. after the reporting date

The financial staternents are-adjusied 1o reflect events that occurred betweén e reporiing date and the date when the
financial statements are authorised for issue, provided they give evidence of conditions that existed. at the: reporting date.
‘Events fhat are indicative of conditians that arose after the- teporting date are. disclosed,.but do not result in an adjustment
‘of the financial statements themselves,
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Annual repartand financial statements: fiam 1 January 2023 to:31 December 2023

2.5 Summary of material accounting policies — continued
(s} Functional and presentation currency

ltems. 1ncluded in-thé fi nancial statements are méasured using the Surrency of the prlmary econamic envirenment in which
the entity. operates (the functional currency} These financial stalements are presented in.Euro; whict is the Gorripany's
functional.and presentation currency;

'{t).Foreign currency transactions

In-late 2020, the company: started. to-write direct insurance: busingss ih Romania which resulted tg exposure in foreign
currency- monetary transactions. In aceordance to 1AS: 21, ‘The efféct of chariges in Foreign’ exchange rates’, transactions
in-foreign. currencies have been converted 1o the Company's functional currency at the rates.of excharige: ruhng on the
date of thie transaction or valuation where items are: re-measured. Foreign exchange- gains and losses resulting. from ihe
‘seltlement of such mohietary transactions weré niot recognlsed in profit or- loss due-té immaterial amounts.

3. Cash dnd cash equivalents.

2023 2022
£ €.

Cash at bank 117,640,000 78,988,978,

Short-terfn deposits-ate made for varying périods of between ope day and three months depending in the immediate: cash
requirements -of the"Campany. Deposits are subject, to an average fixed intérest rate of 2.5% (2022 o 3%} Tha- carrymg
amounts disclosed above reasonably approximate fairvalue at the reporting date.

4. Financial investments

2023 2022
€ ¢
Financial Invéstrnents at fair value
Dsbit securities 102,463,844 01,202,768
(a) Fihancial investments mature as follows:
2023 2022
£ £
Withirt oneyear 8,721, 532' 32 217, 40
Between oneé and two years: 78,711, 704 18, 833 921
Between two and five years 14,030,558 39,101,443

102,463,844 91,202,768
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4. Financial investments — continued

(b) Reconciliatiori

‘Notes
Balance at beginning of year
Additions
Maturities )
Amgpriisationt-of premiums 15
Fairvalue loss/gains recorded in-Other Comprehiénsive Income 13
impairment allowance 15:

Balance atend of year
{c} Fair value hierarchy

Financial investments
Debt secuiities.

2023 2022

£ €
91,202,768 72,805,579
27,960,408 45.488,800.
(19,400,000)  (20,910,000)
130,421 (670:057)
2,648,026 (5,364,780
7779y (146,873)
102,463,844 91202, 768

2023
Level 1
€

102,463,844

2022
Level 1
€

91,202,768

lnc[uded in. the Level 1 category “are ﬁnanclal ‘assets that are measured by reference fo. publlshed quotes in-an-active
market, A‘financial instrument is- regarded as: quoted in.an-active market if quoted prices are readily.and. regularly available
from an exchange, dealer, broker; industry group, pnmng service-or regu[atory agency-.and. those prices represent actual

arid regutarly occuiring: markettransactions on ari-arm's length basis.

5. Loans and receivables.

Loans and receivables at amortised cost

‘Deposits held with financial instituitions.

The ‘above depasits eam interest at an average fixed rate of 2.5% (2022: 1.47%)

Loans'and receivables mature asfollows:

:Lpans ahd receivables
Within-ane year
Between one. and two years.
‘Between'two and five years

2023 5022

€ €

81,500,000 79,000,000
2023 2022
10,000,000 20,000,000
56,500,000 59,000,000
1:5_-,'000_,0'00. -
81,500,000 79,000,000.




RCI Insurance Limited
Afinual report-and fnanciai statements from 1 January 2023 to 31 December: 2023

6. Reinsurance contract assets’

(a) ‘Reconciliation of the remaining coverage. and the incurred claims for reinsurance contracts

held
Remaining coverage Loss- Incurred Total
(excluding Loss- ‘recovery claims:
récovery companent}-' component .
Qpening reinsurance Contract assets. 9,320,743 - 7.595:407 16,718,150
‘Opening reinsurance contract ||abiI1t|es - - - -
Net balance as at T January 2022 9,320,743 | - 7,395407 16,716,150
CSM tecognized for servides provided 1262,462) - - (262,462)
‘Charige.in isk- ad]ustment for non-financial risk-for risk A% R4y a5
transfered {82,541 ) i {32,541}
Expected recoveries of indumred claimis and other a R A y oo oo
insurance service expense (1,375,198) - - (1,375,198} _
ALLOCATION OF PREMILMS PAID {1,670,204) - . (1,670,201
Recoveries of incurred ¢laims.and other isurance _ it s
service expense - = 3,073,038 3,073,038
Changes reldted to past Service (changes rélated fa _ s i o i
incurred claims component} ¥ - {413,898) {413;888)
TOTAL AMOUNTS REGOVERED FROM ' . e
REINSURANCE - - 2,859,140 2,659,140
TOTAL NET EXPENSES FROM REINSURANCE 4:670;201) - 2,689,440 988,940
The:effect of and changes in time of fime value of _ _ L o
meneéy and finaricial risk ' 25,232 - 54,460 79892
TOTAL INSURANGE FINANCE INCOME.OR nE g ) . .
EXPENSE 25,232 - 54,460 79,692
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME {269,708) - [369,008) {638,742)
TOTAL CHANGES. IN-THE STATEMENT OF s g . e
FINANGIAL PERFORMANCE (1.914,676) . 284459, 429,019
“Premiums.paid net of ceding commissions and other- W e
dirgctly attributable expenses. paid {2,971,006) i T 297 006)
‘Recoveries frof reinsurance - = (2,154,343} {2:154,343)
“TOTAL CASH FLOWS {2,971,006) - (2,454,343) ' _{5_,-1_.2_5__549,')'_-
'NET CLOSING BALANGE 4,435,061 - 7,585,660 12,620,721,
Closing reinsurance contract assets 4,435,061 B - 7585860 ‘12020,721 '
-Cldsing. insurance-contrack lidbilities - - - S -

Net batance as at 31 Decémber 2022 4,435,061 - 7,5B5BE0 12,020,721




RCHInsurange Limited
Annual repert and financial staterents from 1 January 2023-t0:31 Detember 2023

6. Reinsurance contract assets — coritinited

{(a) Retonciliation of the remaining coverage and the incurréd claims for reinsurance contracts

held — continued
Remaining coverage Loss-  Incurred Total.
(excluding Loss- -Tecovery cldaims
recovery  component
-companent) ' .

Opening reinsurance contract assets. 4,435,061 - 7585860 12,020,721
Opaning reinsurance contract liabilities - < - -
Net bajance as at1 January 2023 ' 4,435,061 . 1,585860. 12,020,721
CSM recoghized fof services. provided ' (845,973} - = ;__(345._9?_31
Change in risk adjustment for nion-financia!l risk for risk (_.40‘ 859) . . . '(40-,8'5'?:')
transfemad ' : - -
Expected recoverigs of incurred ‘¢laims and other 4 oaE 160y . N 1 BRR 4
insurance service expense’ . (1,235199) B L
ALLOCATION OF PREMIUMS PAID (2,122,031} - - {2;122,031)
eRf;éJ::éies_-of-inbur'redi'tilaim's and-other insurance servicé - . - 1761351 1,761,351
Changes refated to past ervice (chaiiges related to ) C amas . g
incurred claims component). ' - (4,362,839) 4,362,839
TOTAL AMOUNTS RECOVERED FROM ) o ys.and ARas i i A
REINSURANCE - {2,601,488). {2,60%,488)
TOTAL NET EXPENSES FROM REINSURANCE {2,122,031) = {#,601488) {4,723,519);
The efféct of:and.changas in time 6ffime value. of. money AR - ) -
and finandial fisk 17,890 - 60,946 78,836.
TOTAL INSURANGE FINANCE INCOME OR EXPENSE 17_;890' - ‘60,946 7.8;_8316'
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME 92,652 - 156,495 249,147
TOTAL CHANGES IN THE STATEMENT OF. FINANCIAL y o : o A Sy
PERFORMANGE" {2;011,488) - {2,384,046) {4;395,538)
Premiums paid et of ceding comiiissions and dther s sa X A
directly atiributable. BXpenses paid 16,443,230 N 16,443,230
Recoverigs from- reinsurarice - - {2,041,565) (2.041,506)
TOTAL-CASH FLOWS. 16,443,230 - {2,041,506) 14,401,725
‘NET CLOSING BALANCE '18,‘866._-803 - 3;160,108 22,026,910
Closing reinsurance cortract assets 18,866,803 -~ 3,160,108 22,026,910
Closing insurance ¢ontract lidbilities - - - -
Nét balance as at 31 December 2023 18,866,803 . 346008 22,026,910
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_ RCI Insurance Limited.
Annual regortanid financial statemants from 1 Januaty 2023 16-31 Décember 2023

6. Reinsurance contract assets — continued
(b} Reconciliation of the measurement components.of reinsurance contract balances

Estimates of .. Risk csi Total”
Present value adjustment. ; B
of Fiiture Cash “fornon-
Flows financfal risk

Operiing reinsrance contract assets 16,250,439 267,818 197,893 16,716,150
QOpening-reinsuraricé contract liabilities - B .

Net-balance as:at 1 January 2022 16;250,439 267,816 197,893 16,716,150

£3M recognised for seyvices feceived - - (262.462) (262.462)
g:\;lr_]g; In the risk-adjustment for non-financial risk for the risk. _ 3.5:.9‘_0-2? _ :_359_‘027
‘Experience adjustments not relaied to future service 1,296,272 - - 1,296,272

CHANGES THAT RELATE TO CURRENT SERVICES 1,296,272 368,027 {262.462) 1,402,837

Ghanges in estimates that adjustihe CSM 31,263 8,597 {37,860) -

CHANGES THAT RELATE TO FUTURE SERVIGES 31,263 6,597 {(37,860)- -

Changes in fulfilment cash flows — adjusiment tothe LIG (1,288,772) 529,948 - (658,824)
Experierca-adjystments.in claims and other insurance service St g S Gy _ . _
exponses in LIC 273,863 (28,936) - 244,926

CHANGES THAT RELATE TO PAST SERVICES. {1,014,909} 601,012 = (41 3".'898}_

TOTAL NET EXPENSES FROM REINSURANCE. . ‘312,626 976,636 {300,322) 988,940

The effect of and changes in time of time valug-of monéy atid ra o o iy
finanicial risk C 76,178 2,769- 745 79:692

TOTAL INSURANCE FINANCE INCOME OR EXPENSE 7678 2,769 745 79,682

QTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME (593,474} {45,238)' - {638,712)

;CE);.:B F({IS:.:(?ES[N THE.STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL {204,570) 034,165 (288,577) 428,919

Premiyms p_aid"net_-o'f'ceding ccmmiséionsl_a'nﬁ'_f:ther'dir'egt_ly_ ] . _ iy i a A
attributable expenses paid (2.871.006) - - (2971.006)
Recoveries from reinsurance: {2,154,343) = - (2,154,343

TOTAL CASH FLOWS: (5,125,349) - < (592549)

NET CLOSING BALANCE 10,920,420 1,201,984 {101,684) 12,020,721

Closing relnsurance tontract assets 10,020,420 1,201,084 {101,684)  12,020,72%
Closing refnsurance contract liabillties - - - . -

Net batance as at 31 December 2022 10,920,420 1,201,986  (101,884) 12,020,721
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Annual zeport.and financial statements from 1 January 2023 to-31 December 2023

6. Reéinsurance contract assets —continued

(b} Reconciliation of the measurement compaiients of reinsurance contract balances — continued

Estimates of Risk. cSM Total
‘Presentvatue ‘adjustment.
“of Future for non-

Cash-Flows financial rigk-

‘Opening reinsurance contract assets 10,820,420 1,201,984 {107,684} 12,020,721
Opéenigireinsurgnce contract fabilities - Ca - -
Net balance as at 1 January 2023 10,920,420 1,201,984 (101,684) 12,020,721
CSM recogiised for services Tecelved - - {845,973)" (845,973)-
.g,:;?é;; in thie risk-adjustrnent for nan:finaricial risk for the fisk - 200,094 - 200,084.
Expetience adjustments not related to- fature: SBrvice ‘285,199 - - 285,159
CHANGES THAT RELATE TO CURRENT SERVICES 285,199 200,004  (845,973) {360,680}
Cahtracts initialy recognised Ththe year [ '@_4_2_,-8542) '3?1_{},.1 59' 1 302 683 i
Changes’in éstintates that-adjust the CSM {2,071,045) 44,546 2,026,459 -
Changes in estimates that adjust recoveries of fosses on PR o BT . _
onereus undarlying contracts. {3.840) 3,840 '

CHANGES THAT RELATE TO FUTURE SERVICES @ 388,545 3,320,182 -
Changes infulfiment cashy flows — - adjustmant to the el {4,172,522) _('?99;29'_9)” - : {4.’9.?'1.,8_21)
Experience. adjustments in claims and ofher insurance service 741,132 (132:450) ) 508,982
expensgsin LIC . + _
CHANGES THAT RELATE TO PAST SERVICES {3,431,300) (931,449) - (4362,839)
TOTAL NET EXPENSES FROM REINSURANCE {6,863.918) {342,810) 2483209 (4,723,519)
The effect of arid chariges in tiré of time value of money antd 66,918 9,753 2,186 78,836
financial risk.

TOTAL INSURANCE FINANCE INCOME OR EXPENSE 66,918 9,753 2,166 78,836
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME- 226,793 22,355 - 249,147
TOTAL CHANGES IN THE STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL T ; P 1
PERFQB_M ANCE -__{6,5_70,20_7) (31 0,702_) 2,485,375, {4,395,535)
Premiums paid niet of ceding cBmmissions and q_tﬁer.d'i_re'ct_ly A AR _ . 4B 447
attribtitable expenses paid 16,443,230 - : 16,443,230
Recoverigs from reinsurance {2,041,505) - - (2.041.505)
TOTAL CASH FLOWS 14,401,726 - . 18,401,725
NET CLOSING BALANCE 18,751,938 894,282 2,383,691 22,026,910
Closing reinsurance:contract assets: 18,751,938 891,282 2,383,681 22,026,910
‘Closing reinsurarice contract liabilities - - < -
Net balance as at'31 December 2023 18,751,938 891,282 2,383,691 22,026,910
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Annua! report and:finanicizl statements fram- 1 January 2023 t6 31 December 2023

7. Insurance contract liabilities

{A) Reconciliation of the liability for remaining coverage {(LRC) and the liability-for. incurred claims

(LiC)

‘Opefilng insurance contract assels
“Opening insurance contract liabilities.

Net balance as at 1 January 2022

CSM recangnized for services provided

Ghange in-risk adjustment for non-financial rigk for risk’
expired

‘Expetted insurance sefvite éxpénses incurred:

Claiins

Expenses’

Recovery of insurance-acquisition cash flows
‘FOTAL INSURANCE REVENUE

[ricurred: Insurance services expenses

‘Claims

Expenses

OtHer movemenis rafatéd torquirént séivice

Amortisation:of i insurance acquisition cash flows
Changes {hatTelate to' past service (changes i fulfiiment.
cash flows re LIC)

Changes. that relate to-future: Service:

Losses:and reversal of 1osses on oriérous coillracis —subséguent
ineasurement

INSURANCE SERVICE EXPENSES
TOTAL INSURANCE SERVICE RESULT

The effect of and changes.in time of time value of money
and financlal risk

TOTALINSURANCE FINANCE INCOME OR-EXPENSE

OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

TOTAL CHANGES IN THE STATEMENT .OF FINANCIAL
PERFORMANCE.

Premium received

"Claims and dther directly attributabld expénses. paid
fnsurance acquisition cash fiows

TOTAL CASH FLOWS.

‘NET CLOSING BALANCE

“Closing insurance: contract assets
“Closifig-insurance contract liakilitias

Net Baldnee as at 31 December 2022

LRC
Excluding Loss LIC Total
loss component
component
(39,058,845} - 3,233,461 {35,825:394)
40,723,720 - 21,373,768 62,097,488
1,664,875 - 24,607,218 26,272,094
{108,904,922) - 4 {109;904,922).
{1,156,944) {1,156,944)
{25:341,016). - {25,341,016)
* (15,867,248) - - {15.867,249)
(9,473,767} . - 15,4732,767)
{50,016,817). - - (50,016,817)
(186,419,699} - (186,419,699).
. 34,263,196 34,263,196
. - 24,005,419 24, ossdfs
- - 10,856,747 10,856,747
- - {688:970) (688,970}
50,016,817 - ‘ 50,015,817
- - {101,546} {101,548).
- 671,307 - 671,307
i 674,307 ’ 674,307
50,016,817 671,307 34,161,650 84,849,774
(136,402,882) 671,307 34461650  (101,569,926)
(159,872) - 92,766 (67,078)
{159,872) - 82,796 {67,076]
8,958,163 - (1,582,840) 7,368,323
{127,604;591) 671,307 32,665,606 194,267,678)
189,284 488 - - 189283488
L - - (22763577} (22,763,577}
(49,347,364 - - {49,347, 364)
139,936123 - (2z7e3sTT)  AMTAT2EA7
13,096,407 871,307 34,509,248 49,476,962
(28,653,744) 609,067 3083872  (25010805)
42,650,151 62,240 31,475,376 74,187,767
13,996,407 671,307 34,508,248

49,176,962
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7. Insurance-confract liabilities - continued

(A) Reconciliation of the liability for femaining coverage (LRC) and the liability for incurred claims

(LIC) — continued
. LRC _ . L
Excluding loss: Loss LiC Total
component  component
.Opening insurance contract assets (28,653,744 609,067 *3,033,872 (25,010,805}
‘Opeting-insurange coniract liabilities 42,650,151 62,240 31,475,376 74,182,767
Netbatance ds at1 January 2023 13,096,407 674,307 34,509,248 49,176,962
CSM recongnized for services provided (112,750,488) - - . '{11_2,‘(50_,‘488}
..;S:‘;?g; in risk adjustment for noh-financial risk forrisk. {903 770]3' . ) 1903,770).
:Expected insoraice service expenses incurred: {26,839,866) - - 26,839,866])
Gldims - {17.676.506) . - (17.676,505)
Expenses. (9,163, 361) - - {9, 163,361}
Retovery of.insurance acquisition cash flows {50,307,525) - - (50,307,525)-
TOTALINSURANCE REVENUE {190,801,649) - - {180,801,648} '.
Incurred insurance.services: expenses (289,284) 29,796,685 28,907,401
Chiims: ' - (58,5689) 16,865,065 18; 305 496
:Expérises - (298 715) 11,016:514 10,718,798
Qthermovements refated fo current service. - - (114,853 (114, 893).
Amidgriisatian ofinsurance acquisition’ cash flows -50,307,625 - - 50,307,525.
.-.Ghanges that relate to past seryice (changes in . ) : A, aE AR
fulfilmerit cash flows re LIC) ' - 116,680,895 (16,690:895)
.Changes: that relate 1o filuie service - 299,705 - 299,705
Losses and-reversatof fosses on onEroUs: contracts — 0 i NI
:subsequent meéasurement B 299:705 B 299‘_ 705.
INSURANGE SERVICE EXPENSES 50,307,525 (589,578) 13,105,790 62,823,737
TOTAL INSURANCE SERVICE RESULT (140,484,124) {589,578) 13,108,780 (127,977,912)
‘The effect.of and changes.intime of time value: of ca “10d s a4 g o
Frioney anid financial risk 590,794 1403 212,862 804,058
TOTAL INSURANCE FINANCE INCOME OR on & T - T
EXPENSE h 580,794 1,403 211,862 804,038
QTHER COMPREHENSIVE INGOME (4,572,641 : 430,624 (4133,017)
TOTAL CHANGES IN THE STATEMENT OF o oy e
FlNANC’ﬁL PERFORMANCE (14-4147-5’971_}' {588;1 75} 13:757’276 {1 31 Iaoaia?u)
Prémium received, 245,864,042 - - 245,864,042
Claims and other directly aftributable expenses pard- - - (283,880,912) (23,890.912)
Insurance acquisition cash' flows (75;399,351): - (75,399,351)
TOTAL CASH FLOWS 170,464,691 - {23,890,912) 146,573,778
NET CLOSING BALANCE 39,985,127 83,132 24,315,612 64,443,870
Closing insurance contract assets (28,831,068} ~17a 3,388,985 {25,441,9089)
Closing insurance:cantract liahilities 68,816,195" §2,958 20,986,627 ‘89,885,779
Net'balance as-at-31 December2023 39,985,127 837132 24,376,612 64,443,870




RCI Insurance Limited
Annual report.and:fi nanclal statements from 4. January 202310 31 December 2023

7. Insurance contract liabilities - continued

(b).Reconciliation of the measurement components on insurance coptract balances

(172,080,498)

-Estiinates-of . Risk ‘CsM Total
Presentvalue adjustmgnt'
of Futire Cash “for non-
Flows financial risk.
‘Opening reinsurance contract assets (-1_;3:_5__;,6'3?,',2'28): 2,152,968. .97,658:867  (35,825,394)
“Opening reinsurance contract liabiities (11,457,113) 1,211,198 72;343,402 62,097,488
Net balance as at 1--Jaﬂu’ai‘y._2'022 {_1.47,094,;341} 3,364,166 170,002,269 26,272,094 ..
CSM recognised for services received. - - (109,904,922}  1109,804,922)
Changg:inthe.risk adjiistrient for rion-financlal risk for the: _ R ' AT o1,
risk-expired o 1,447,812 - .1,447,91_2.
:Expenence adlustments not related to fulre service 6,317,324 - - 6,317,324
‘CHANGES THAT RELATE TO CURRENT SERVICES 6,317,323 1,447,912 (109,804,922}  (102,139,686)
Contracfs initially recogrifsed in the. year (95,481,072) 651,280 -94.829,792 -
Changés iy estimaies.that adjust the CSM - {60,020,564) {865,851} 60,586,415 -
Changes:in estimates that adjust recoveties of losses or e, o i e
onerous Underlying confracts 668,374 4933 N 671,307
CHANGES THAT RELATE TO FUTURE SERVICES- {1 5?1;333-,262) 88,362 455,416,207 674,307
Chianigesifi fuffiithent cash flows —adjustment to the LIC. (943,758) 2,284,448 - 1,340,689
[Experience-adjustrnents.in claims, and ather insurance o e o
service expenses:n LIC {1,081,102) (351,133) - -’{1_.,442;2’3’5_)_
GHA NGESTHAT RELATE TOPAST S"E_RVECES {2,034,880) 1,933,314 - :{101 1546)
TOTAL NET EXPENSES FROM REINSURANCE (150,550,798} 3,469,589 45511285  (101,569,926)
The-effect of and changes in time of time value of money-and _ _— i e e
financial risk 738,856 (3;404) (802,528) {67,078)
TOTAL INSURANCE FINANCE INCOME OR EXPENSE 738,856 {3,404} {802,528) (67.076)
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME 7,653,238 (283,818) s 1889,323
TOTAL CHANGES.IN THE STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL
PERFORMANCE {142,158,705). 3,482,270 44,708,757 {94,267,678)
Premiums: and:premium tax received 189,263.488 - -~ 189,283,488
Claims and ofher nsurance service expenses paid, including A— oy e B
investment comiponents (22‘76357?) - - _-(22'763‘5'7'7}
Insurance acquisition cash flows (49,347,364) - « {49,347 384)
TOTAL CASH FLOWS 117,172,547 - < MTA72,547
NET CLOSING BALANCE (172,080:499) 6,546,436 214,711,025 49,176,962
Closing reinsurance confract-agsets (154,160;040) 1,424,332 127,824,903  (250%0,805)
Closing reinsurance: contract liabilities {17,920,459y 5,322,104 86,786,122 74187767
Net balance as at 37 December 2022 6,546,436 214_-,‘-:"("!_‘1__,'_02_5: 49,176,962




RCI Insurance Limited:
Annual report and financial statemants from 1 danuary 2023 10 31 Dacember 2023.

7. Insurance contract liakilities - continued

(b} Reconciliation of the measurement components on insurance contract hatances — continued

Opening reinsurance contract assets

Opening: reinsurance contract liabifities

Net balarice as-at 1 January 2023

cSM recogmsed far services received

Changs-in the fisk adjustmend for. non»frnanclal fisk for. the
risk expired

Experience: adjustments not relsted to futUre sen.!lce
CHANGES THAT RELATE TO:CURRENT SERVICES'
Contracts initially recognised in the year

Changes it gstimates that adjust the CSM

Changes i estimates that adjust recoveries of losses an
ONETQLS underlylng contratis

CHANGES THAT RELATE TO FUTURE SERVICES
Changes in fulfiment cash-flows  adjustment (o the LIC:
Experience adjustients in claimis and othérinsurance
service expenses in LIG

CHANGES THAT RELATE TO PAST SERVICES
TOTAL NET EXPENSES FROM:REINSURANCE

The effect of and changes in time of time valué of money
and financial risk:

TOTAL INSURANGE FINANCE INCOME OR EXPENSE

OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

TOTAL CHANGES IN THE STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL .

PERFORMANCE

Preiniums pald and preniim tax received.

_Ciaims arid:othar insurarice sefvite expenses. paid,
ineluding-investment gomponents

Instrance: acqu151t|un cash flows

TOTAL CASH FLOWS

NET CLOSING BALANCE-

Closing reinsurance contract assets
Closing reinserance:conirgit liabilities

Net:balance as.at 31 December 2023

Estimates of  Risk adjustment CsM Total
Présentvalue of  fof nofi-financial
Future-Cash risk
Flows
{154,160,040) 1,224,332 127924903  (25,010,805)
'(17;9‘20,4’15‘9_} 5,322,104 86,786,122 74,1 87,767
(172,080,499) 6,546,436 214,711,005 49,176,962
- «  {112,750,488) (112,750488)
1701228 1,701,229
(537,463) . - (537:463),
(537,463) 1,704,220 (112,750,48)  (111,586,723)
22,032,018) 2,187,027 19,844,991 -
19,395,787 1718031 (20,513,817) -
288,548 11,158 o 289,705
(102,347,683) 3,316,215 99,331,174 299,705
{17,080.524) (2,704,741 - (19,765264)
3,879,449 (805,080} - 3,074,368
{13,181,074) (3,509,821) + (16,680,885)
(116,066,221} 1,507,623 (13:419,314). (127,877,912}
(2:895311)° a2.136 3,406,051 802,876
{2,695,311) 92,136 3,406,051 802,876
(4,181,451) 8,434 - [4133017)
{122,902;982). 1,608,192  (10,613,263)  (131,308,053)
245,865,225 . - 245,865,225
(23,860812) . - (23890.912)
(75,399,351) . s (75:399,351)
446,574,961 - - 146,674,961
(148,408,520) 8,164,628 204,697,762 64,443,870
{124,281118) 2,085,700 96,773,508 (25,441,809)
{24,127,402) /6,088;928. 107,924,254 ‘89,885,779
{148,408,520} 8,154,628 204,697,762 64,443,870
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8. Insurance and other réceivables

2023 2092 -restated
£ €
Receivables afising from directinsurance operations _
due from group undertakings 21,557,355 6,140,633
- due from claims handler - (429 412}
-. dué fiom others _ - 9, 529'3
due-from parent undertaking ‘342,914
Reteivables arising from reinsurance actepiances 19,212,217 39,530,425
= due from ceding undertakings '
Other.teceivables | — _
- accrued interest from group undertaking. 966,540 515,553
- ofher accrued interest income 590,206 609,313
42,669,232 46,376,041
Insurance and other receivables:are all classified as current assels,
9. Deferred Taxation
{a) Movement in deférred tax _ )
2023 2022 -restated
€ €
At beginning. of year 4,836,755, 104,862
IFRS:17 trarisition imgaet (Profit and Loss) (14,240,089)
Movemnent recorded during thewyear: o _
= e F'r__or t-and Loss (hote 17) o 14,267,432 51410,
- in'Other Comprehensive Income (note 13) {2,460,566) 4,680,483-
Atend of year 2,403,552 4,836,755

A) Temporary differences

Deferréd incomme . taxes are calcilated-on -all temporary differenices uging-a principal tax rafe of 35% (2022:35%). The:

analyms of deferred tax assetsiliabllities is as follows:

2023 2022 -restated

€ £

Temporary differences attributable to-unreatized fair value 961,862 1,888:670
Temporady differences atlributable to: other provisions. 172,635 145,273
Temporary.differences attiibutable to OCI impadt.an IFRS17 _11,265-,0_5'5 2,802,843
Balance-as-at 31 December 2,403,522 4,836,756
2023 2022 -restated’

€ €

Deferred tax asset 2,403,522 4,836,756
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40. Equipment:

'Year ended 31 December 2022
Opeéning carrying amount
Deépreciation charge
Cldsing carrying amourit
At 31 December 2022
Cost
Aceumulated depreciation
Carrying amount

Year ended 31 December 2023

Openmg carrymg ‘amount.
Depreciation charge

Closing. carrying amount

At 31 December 2023
Cost
Accumulatéd depreciation

Carrying amount

11.-Share capital

Autherised ordinary shares

40,000 (2022 40,000).ordinary-shares of €1 00 each

'Ordmary shares issued and fully paid:

40,000 (2022 40,000} ordtnary shares. of €100 each_

42, Capital Contribution:

‘Baiance at 1 January
Additions

Balance.at-31 December.

N . Electrical
Computer and Furniture; and
electronic  fixturesand  plumbing o
equipment: fittings.  ‘instailations Total
: € € €
10;421 7,329 1,223 18,973
(10421) (2,938) (1,223) {14,582}
- 4,391 . 4391
50,304 23,501 9,570 83,375
{,50304) (19,110) {9,570) {78,984)
: 4;391 " 4,391
- 4391 - 4,391
- (2,632) - {2,632y
- 1,759 - 4,759
50,304 23,501 9,570. 83,375
(50,304) (21,742). (9,570). {81,616)
- 1,759 1,759
2023 2022
€ €
4,000,000° 4,000,000
4,000,000 4,000,000
2023 2022
€ €
60,259,660 51,331,326
8,453,275 8,928,334
68,712,935 60,259,660

‘Buring the year under review, a further capital contribution of €8,453,275 was. made-on:the 4*' April 2023-(2022; addition of

€8,028,334 - made on 7 April 2022),
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13. Other reserve

This reserve records:fair value changes on-fingricial investments, representing unrgalized gains not available for
distributiop. ' ' o - .
N 2023 2022 -restated
e e

Balance at 1 January (8,713,021) _{20,689)
Gross-fovement in‘Revaliation (Note. 4) 2/648,026 (5:364.780)
‘Gross-movernent in' instrarice and reinsurance 4,382,164 (8.008.035)
Deferred tax {note 9) (2,450,566) 4,680,483

Balance at 31 December (4,143,398 {8,713,021)

14. Insurance and other payables:

202 2022
€ €

Creditors -arising out of reinsurance. 3,481,383 7,723,880
Creditors arising out of:direct insuranse 45,346,398 23,869,755

Other payables -
- due-to parent. _ 315,275
- sacial security and other taxes 727,132 18,816
-.actilals and ather payables 349,909 371,998

49,904,822 32,299 835

The carrying amolint disclosed above reasoriably approximate fair value at the reporting date.

All amounis are payable within one year:
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15. Investment income’ . oy
2023 2022
Investment income: o L
Financial investments interestincome 1,245,736 939,242;
Interest income on toans. and receivables’ 1,344,930 396,194
Other.interest income- 3,303,161 168,348
Fifiancia! investmerits, @mortisation of discount {Note 4y 694,263 103,273,

Total' investment incorme 6,588,090 1,607,057

livestment expénses.and chaiges. L L
Amottisatioh-of prémium (Note 4) {563,843} (773,330)
Impairment:Allowance (Note 4} 77,779 (146,873)

Totat investment expense- (486,064) {920,203)

" Total invéstment returri 6,102,026 656,854

16. Expenses by nature
2023 2022,
€ €
Annuial sta{mory_ audit 75,826 56493

17. Employee benefit expenses.
2023 2022
€ €
Wages and salaries 826,098 804,823
Sogcial security 25,353 80,100
Total employee benefit expenses 851,451 884,923

The average number.of persons employed during the year was:

Manageriat
Technical 2
Administrative 4 -

SR
G O

10 8

43,



RGCl Insurance Limited
Anriual regort and fnanc&al statements from 1 January 2023 to 31 December 2023

18. income tax expense:

{a) Current tax-expeise for the year
Current tax expense: _
Deferred tax expanse (note:9)

Total income tax expense

{b) Tax recorded in Other Compreherisive Income.

‘Breferred tax-movément

Total tax charge to Other Comprehensive Incorme
(c) Tax recorded in Profitand Loss

Deferred tax movement

Total tax charge to:Frofit.and Loss
(b}.Reconciliation of tax expense

Profit before tax for the year

Tax expense at Malta’s statutory income tax rate of 36%

Unrecognised deferred tax-from prior year

19. Risk management framiework

Capital management objectives, policies and approach:

2023 2022 -restated

€ ' €

59,260,988 36,238,780

(14,267,292) (51,410

44,993,696 36,187,370

2023 2022 -restated

€ €

{2,460,5686). 4,680 483
{2:460,586) 4,680,483.

2023 2022 -restated

€ €

(14,267,292) 51,410

{14,267,292) 51,410
2023 2022 -restated

€ €
128,631,197 103,392,487
45,020,919 36,187.370
44,993,696 36,187,370

The Company has éstablished the following capital management objectives, pahcles -and-approach. i6- manage-‘the risks.

that-affect its capital. position:

= To-maintain the required Jevel.of stablllty ofthe Company thereby prowdlng a degree of security to pollcyholders
= To allocate capital efﬁmently and support. the. development of business by ensuring that returns on cap;tal employed:

meet'the requirements of its. capital providers and of its shareholders.

To retain financial flexibility. by maintainirig strong liquidity and. access to a-range of capital markets.
e To allgn the profilé of assels and liabilities. taking: dccount of risks:inherent in the business.
' To maintain i nancial strength fo support new-business -growih.and to. safisfy the requirements of the pohcyholders

regulators and stakehalders.

» To'maintain strong. credit ratings and tiealthy: capital ratios in order to. support its-business.ohjectives and ma>¢|mlse

shareholders-value,
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19. Risk fnanagement fraimework — continued.

The Company's cagital management palicy for its insurance business is to hold sufficient-capital to cover the statutory
reguirements based on the: MESA Directives, mcludlng any additional amounts réquired by the Malta Financial Services
- Authority, the Regulator. The Gompany was ccmphant with the regulatory solvency requiremerits:throughout the financial
year.

The Sclventy Il Directive (2009!138!EC} came: into force -on 1 Janvary 2016, with” riew regulatory requirements . that
dictate the capital required to service the risks: the Company is currently underlaktng Salvency 11 alse. cutlines how the
own funds shall be derived by converting the Statement of Financial Position from an IFRS perspective to one. where.
assets and liabilities are measured in line with their underlylng -economic value. As of this date; the solvency calcutations
under Salvency | reglme will rio: longer be applicable,

The Dirgctors-are actively involved in the' |mp[ementat|an of the Solvency 1l rules and these are highly embedded in the
Company’s. operations. Regular nmoritoring of ‘the SCR is considered erucial and a Capital Management and Dividenid
Policy has been put in place to déscribe the pnnclples governing: cap:tal management and: dividend. distribution .of the
Gompany, that is, the process to be followed prior to-effecting any. decision impacting thé Gapital positian- of RCI Insuraice
Limited thereby ensuring that the Company has sufficient levels.of capital -at all times-to be able to.service- existing -and.
foreseeable risks:

The MCR' for the Gompany based on the audited 'SCR-calculations: as :at"31 December 2023: is €29,912,238 (2022:
€28,555,411), Thie Company has compl[ed with the capital and sdlvency réguirements as stipulated in the rules issued by
the MFSA, Geing forward, the Company is also expected {0 continue migeting the solvency-If requirements, based on the
projected SCR’ catcuiatlons included:in the. 2023 ORSA" ‘teport. ‘. the-case of. any solvency gap,-the Directors. have put in
place a capital plan aiffied t6 ensure that the Company will have: adequate own funds” ta meet the required SCR.

20. Insurance and financial risk
(a) Insurance risk

The principal risk-the Company faces under insurance contracts is that the actual daims and benefit paymenits or the
timing thereef, differ from éxpectations. Thisis influenced by the frequency of claims; severity-of claims and actual befiefits
paid. Therefore, the objective of the: Company s to ensure that sufficient reserves are. available:to cover these: kabilities:

The maost significant risks for miscellaneous financial loss covers is a recession leading to high unemployment: whllst for
accident and health covers :-ngmf icant fisks arise from llfesty!e changes and-epidemics.

The above risk exposure is mitigated: by diversification of different classes of busingss.across @ large partfolio;of insurance
contracts ‘and geographical areas. The: vanablhty of risks is also improved by careful seleclion: and implementation -of
undeswriling sirategy gundellnes arid claim review. pohmes as weil as the use of reinsurance arrangements.

The Company underwntes paymenit protectton insurance covering death, accu:ient and health and miscellaneous fi nangial
loss to clients: of ifs ulimate. parent Company, RCI'Banque S.A. on a direct basis, R:sks under these insurance-policies. on
average span over a pefiod of four yeais. A§ at the erid of the year; the Campany. was. ‘operating‘in Germany, France, !1aly,
Spain, Austiid, Partugal and Romania. In 2020, a Traffic:Accident. program was Jaunched for MFS i Romiania and simitarly
for ltaly in 2022, The Companies have increased the-insurance underwriting portfolio fuither in 2023 with.the introduction
of .insurance produr:l GAP: for ltaly. In addition, the Compary .also contlnued writing ‘réinsurance business with two:
counterparties. The risks aré situated in'Frande arid Gérimany.

The: variability of Fisks Is improved by careful selectiors and |mplementahen of underwriting slrategles whichh are des:gned-
to. ensura that risks aré diversified in terms of type of risk and level-of insured benéfits. The: Company s buginess is.
undenyritten through dn intérmediary's. network.congisting of Group comparigs.. [rterhal undérwriting -guidelines are. in
place-to enforce appropriate tisk selection criteria.and-are reinforced by controls: that-are in place-at a Group level. Strict.
claim review pelames to assess all new.and ongoing claims, regular detailed review: of claims handling procedures- and
frequent investigation- of possnbte fraudulent claims are_all policies and procedures put-in plage to-reduce the fisk e¥posure’
of the Company.. The Company-further enforces a palicy of actively: managing. and promptly’ pursuing claims, in orderto
reduce:its exposure fo- unpredlctable future deueiopmente that-can:negatively Impact the business,
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20. Insurance and financial risk - continued
(a) Insurance risk - continuied.

For PPl business, the: Company purchases reinstirance. on its direct business as part-of its. rigk m|hgatton program, The
Ccmpany has. placed its reinsurance treaty with an AA- rated Company, which has baen actively monitored. Remsurance
ceded is placed on a proportional basis. This fuota-share réinsurance is taken out to féducethe ovérall: exposure of the
Company to all.classes of busihess-in all countries. Amounts recoverable from the reinsurer are estimated in a matiner
‘consistent with the outstanding. claims. provision: :and are.in accordarice: with the. reinsurance con{racts

Although the Company has reinsurance arrangements itis-not refieved of its direct: obhgahons toits pollcyholders and thus
a-credit exposure exists with respect to ceded insurance, 1o the. extent that the reinsurer is unable to meet:its. obligations
gssumed Under Such reinsurance agréefments.

Gn tHe other :hand, the ‘Company has assessed. the risks being undenwritten through the reinsurance treaty olrer the:
‘historical period, and based on that, the progressive dlsengagement (over 5 years)-from the-reinsurance in: guata share
with AXA o PP1 pregrams, approved by the:Board of Directors-in 2017 has. been implemented according to-plan over the:
past faur years.and has ended in 2021 witfi-a final quata share minirmum-at 10%. Starting the generallon af 2022 no
reinsurance quota-share: has been recognized for PP) portiolio, '

Starling 2023, the riew reinsurarice tréaty has been launched for GAF progrant in Htaly: Because of the GAP (‘Return-To-
invoice”) program represents a new type of insurance prodict for the: Company, the Ccmpany have decided fo reinsure:
the: entire portfolio of the generation 2023 with Nissan Intemational Insurance (*Reinsurér), As this type of busitiess is well
establlshed at Resnsurer the Company-will-participate on theirtechnical support and expertise.

Key a_s's_ump_tfbﬂs_

The piincipat assumption underlying the-liability- estimates is that the GCompany's. future clalms development: W|II fol!nw a
sirmitar patfern fo past claims development experience within the:REI Group.

The Company has therefore assumed an ultrmate loss .rafio in orderto estimate’ its total ‘Liability -for Incurred Clam‘ns.
séparately for curfent and past ocourrence reportmg penods accordmg to the accounting standards IFRS47, first time:
|rnplemented Starting 1% of January. 2023

-Ce_n'ira{ Scenario T Sgepario 2 - .ﬁgﬁraﬁq 3 -
Scenario Discount Rate Claims Productior
oy _ L € € _ € .. €
Total Insurance Revenues 190,801,649 190,801,649 188,661,442 188,641,702
Total Insurance Services (67,547,256) (67,547,256) (70,490,944) (66,401,335]
INSURANCE SERVICE RESULT ' ’ 3,254,394 | 118,170,498 122,240,367
Net financial result {725, 223)' {716,299) (656,989):
Investment income 6,102:026 b‘ 192 026 6,102,026 . 6,102,026
PROFIT BEFORE TAX 128,631,197 128,631,197 123,556,225 127,685,404
OTHER COMPREHENS!VE . Cmp . o e K
INCOME BEFORE TAX 4,382,164 288,436 1,022,585 4,388,605

Scenano 1 ~ Discount Rate:

> Market— [rterest rate-shock: THis includes a +1 00bp in discount rate curve foreach projection year,

¥ Based:on the RCI insurdiice dccounting méthadology, the effect of financial risk and changes in financial fisk is
reported in Olher Comprehensive Income . {*OCI). Therefore, the drop iti OCI-by €4,093,728 has been reported-in
the Balance Sheet for RCH Insurance as avimpact of increasing the discount rate-as of the reporting periad.
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“20. insurance and financial risk — continued

(a) Insuranice fisk - continued

Scenario 2 - Claiims;

% Insurance risk shock: This is.a permanent increase of the claim frequency by +258% for the PPl Total temporary
Disability coverage, +40%: for PPI--Unémployment coverage and #30%:for GAP busingss.
The shock has.been apphed on the -central scenario-for the evolution-of claims within the reporfmg period-as: weH
as.femaining-coverage in the: future.
The sensifivily. nepresents ore-of the Adverse — Jasurance risk scenarios réported in the CRSA 2023
Voiatility of expected claims represents the most significant risk for RCI Insurance.
No breaching of risk appetite rule was observed-on pm!’ 1t (< 20% of Central-Scenario), but the hégative impact of
(€5,074,972) (-3.9%] did not reach the Alert threshold (<10%) dunng the reportmg period.

¥Yvv ¥

Scehario. 3 - New Production:
¥ Requlatory shock: This is a decrease of the new pmducnon of 2023 by 15% for PPI businiess.
> The shack has been apphed ofr the cenitral scenario of the: PPI contract praduiction, ndemwritten.in 2023.
¥ . The serisitivity represents the potential impact on the new business production due to-regulalory pressure on PP."
business in. EU countrigs,
¥ No breaching of risk appelite rule was observed on profit (<20% of Central-Scénario), and with a negative impact
of (€945,793) (-0; 7%) if did not-reidch the Alert thieshold lével (< 10%) during the reporfing period.

{b) Financial-risk-

The Compatiy is -exposed to financial risk that the proceeds from its. finaricial assets are not sufficient’ to fund the
ubligations arising from.its insurance risk,

The most important ‘components of this financial fisk are market risk (including interest raté:risk), credit risk and liquidity -
risk. The risk management policies’ employed by the Comipany to manage-thesé risks.are discussed below,

(1) Credit risk

Credit Tisk is he risk-that one. paity 1o’ a firiangial instiumient will cause a financial loss to the other parly by failing fo
discharge an- obligation.

The. Company ‘writeés . PP| fisks. for the Renault group through various -group- :entities.. The Campany therefore has no
counterparty insurance credit risk to parties outside the Renauit: group theteby reducing substantially its credit fisk.

The Company invests.in Frerich, ftalian: and Spanish government bonds, EIB. bonds, European Unien bonds, corporate
bonds. with réputable counterparfies and. hotds deposits with RC| Banque S.A., a BBB ratéd financial ;nstttutton ticensed
and regulated by the:French Banque de France, a member of the Renadilt Group

The primary debtor is the Company's parent.undertaking, a BBB raled fi rangial institution ficensed:dnd regutated by the
French Banqué.de France,

‘Reinsurance is piaced with a counterparty that has an ‘AA- credit rating. At each reporting date, management performs an
assessiment of the creditworthingss of the reinsurer-and updates the reinsurance purchase strategy, ascertaining suitdble.
allowanice fof impairment.

The eredit risk in. respect of cusiﬂmer balances incufred-on non-payment bf" premlurns or cantributions will .only pérsist
-durlng he. grace yéar specified i the policy dacument or trust deed -until-expiry, wheri the policy is gither :paid up:or
terminated, ‘Commissicn paid-to intermiedianias is netted off against amounts receivable from them to reduce the risk: of
daubtful debts.
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20. Insurance and financial risk — continued

{b} Financial risks.— continued

(1) Credit risk - continued

Credit exposire

The'table below shows the maxirmum exposure te credit risk for the components of the Statement of Finangial-Posifionand

items such as future commitments as at 39 Dedamber.

Loans and-receivables _
Findncial investments - debt securities

Reinsurance contract assets
Insurance and other receivables
Cash and cash equivalents

Total credit risk exposure

Credit exposure by credit rating

Notes

.00 & btn

2023 2022 resstated

€ £
81,500,000 79,000,000
102,463,843 91,202,768
22,026,910 12,020,721
44,226,341 42572613
417,640,000: 78,988,978
367,857,095 304,185,079

The table: below provides information regarding.the credit risk exposure-of the Company at 31 December by classsfylng
assets according 10 the ‘Standard and Poar's credit ratings (or equivalenty of thie. counterparties: AAA is the. highest
possible rafing. Asséts that fall outside the range of AAA to BBB- are not rated.

31 December 2023

Loans:and receivables
Financial investments —-
debt securities
Reinsurance contract

assets:
Insurance and
receivables

‘Cash andcash

‘equivalents’

Total

Nelther past-due nor impaired

AA- BBB+/BEE/ B }

AA _ A- BBB-  Not rated Total

€ € € € € €

- B = -~ 81,500,000 - 81,500,000
19,237,542 13,768,388 24,146,592 23,744,078 21,537,242 - 102,463,843
- 22,026,910 - - - 22,026,910

61,680 27,621 20,869,457 95466 23,172,116 - 44,226,341

- - - 111415310 6,224,690 117,640,000
19,299,222 35,822,920 45,016,049 23,869,554 237,624,668 6,224,690 367,857,095
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20. Insurance and finanéial risk —continued

(b} Financial risks - continued

(1) Credit risk - continued

Credit exposure by credit rating - continued:

31 December 2022

re-stated AA.
e

Loans.gnd receivables
Financial investments «
debt securities
‘Reinstrance contract N
‘assefs '
‘Insurarceand
Teceivables
Cash-and cash -
equivalents

80,685

21,053,243

AA-
€

4,282,506

12,020,721
(281,225)

A
£

18,840,742

36,499,049

‘Neither past due nor impaired

A-
€

20,804,660

71,582

BBB
€

79,000,000
28,221,617

7,018,500

70,485,834

Not rated

Total
€ -

€

~ 79,000,000
- 91,202,768
- 12,020,721

(415987)  42,972613

8,503,144 78,988,978

Total 21,133,028

16,022,002

55,339, 791

20,876,242

182,725,960

B.0B7,157 304,185,019

During the year, no credit sxposufe limits were exceeded. The Company. actively manages its preduct mix to ensure that
there. is no significant concentration of credit risk.

Imipaired financial assets

Forassets to be classified as ‘past-due and impaired’ contractual payments must be in-amears for miore than 90 days. At
31 December 2023, €337,287 of the Compariy’s assats were impaired.(2022: €415,065).

(2 Liquidity risk

Liguidity risk 5. thé risk that an:entity will-encounter difficulty in mesting obligations associated with-financial instrumerits. In
respect-of catastrophic events there is.also a liquidity risk associated with the timing differences between gross cash out-
flows-and expected reinsurance recovefies. ' '

Thi. following poficies and procedures. are in place to mitigate the Company's expostire to liquidity risk:

* A Company liquidity risk policy. setting out the -assessment and-determination of what constitutes liquidity risk for the
Company. Comipliance with the poficy is mionitored and exposures and breachies are reported to.the Company: Board.
The policy is regularly reviewed for pertinence and-for changés in the risk-environment.

« Setguideiines on asset allocations, portfoli limit structures and maturity profiles of assets, in order to ensure sufficient
funding available to meet insurance and investment contracts obligations.
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20. Insurance and financial risk - continued
(_b']: Financial risks - contintied

(2) Liquidity risk - continued
The following table indicates the expected timing of cash flows arising from the Company's liabilities:

31 December 2023 o
' o 0-1year  1-5years >5 years “Total

. . € £ € £

Insurance contract liabilities 29,547,540 34,681,585 214,777 64,443,870
Insurance-and oiher payables 31,363,664 12,668,987 78,457 44111,108
Incare fax payable 65,208,778 - E . 45,020,919

Total 126,119,982 47,350,540 293,234 173,763,756

31 December 2022

0 year  t-Byears  >Hyears. Total
o € € € €
Insurance cantract fiabilities ‘22,647,656 26:465,400 163,896 49,176,962
Insurance and other payables 16,417,303 10,021,768 67,051 26,508,121
Income tax payable: 41,429,576 - - 41,429,576
Deferred tax 14,240,069: - s 14,240,068

Total 80,266,439 35,487,177 230947 131,352,728

(3} Market risk

Market risk s the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of & financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in
market prices. Market risk comprises three types of risk: foreign-exchange ratés (Clrrency risk); market intefest rates
(interest rate risk) and market prices (price risk). The Company invests in fixed income securities and déposits thereby
-exposing itself to interest rate risk. The Company's assets and liabifities are alt denomiinated in Eurc: thereby leaving: the
“Company with no currency expasure.. o o '

(4).Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk s fhe risk that the value:or future cash flows of a.financial instrument will fiictuate because-of changes'in

‘market irterest rafes.

{5) Foreigm excharige risk

Foreign: exchange: fisk is the Tisk-of financial impact due 16 exthange:rate-fluctuations. on an enfity. In late 2020; the
company started to.write-direct insurance business inRamiania but did not feport any foreign ‘exchange gain or loss as-the-
amounts were immaterial, B '

‘Floating rate instruments expose. the Company to cash flow initerest risk, whéreas fixed interest rate-instruments: exposé.
the Company to. fair vahie interest risk, The Company-invests primarily-in fixed. interest. tate: bonds, fong-term and shori-
term. depasits which are re-priced at renewal of the deposit: '

The Company's net exposure to interest rate: risk-is: riot considered to be material in view &f the fact that the intersst rates
of the financial investments are fixed. Accordingly a serisitivity: analysis for interest rate risk digclosing how profit or losg
and-equity wolld have been affected by changes in‘interest rates that weré reasonably possible at reporting date: is not
deemed necessary. ' ' o
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21. Cash generated from-operating activities

2023 2022 restated
Notes. € L3
Profit before:faix 128,631,197 103,392,487
Adjistrent for _ o
'Depreciation, of equipment 10 2,832 - 14,582
Interestincome {5,893,827) {1,503,785)
Net amortisation of prémium on fi nancial: mvestments 4b (130,421) 670,057
Impairment allowance: 77,078 146,873
Moveinents in iems ir th. Statement of Financial Position: o
‘Réinsurance:confract assets. {10,006,180) 4,695,430
insurance and other. recewables 3,274,930 (5,173,043)
Insurance contracts liabilities 19;648,93% 14,896,860
Insurance and other payables 17,604,986 2,772, ?52)
Cash generated from operating activities. 153,210,019 114,366,709

22, Contingericies and commitments

{a) Capital commitments and operating leases

Thie Gompany has no capital.commitments as at the refiorting date.

23. Related party disclosures

{a) Transactions with rélated parties

The- Campany enters;into transactions with its. parent, group- ‘undertakings and-key management persorine] in: thie normal
caurse. of businéss. Related paries ‘are defined as. those that Have an ability fo control or exercise significant influence:

over the other party in making finanicial and operation decisians.

Details oFsignificant transactions carried-out during the year with telated parties. are @s follows::

2023 2022

Investnent incomie frém pargnt 1,350,914 689,823
2023 2022

€ 13

Dividends paid (note 24) 76,847,935 74,072,773
Commission paid to group underiaking 88,857,870 46:216,255
Claim handing fees paid te group undertaking 1,254,540 1,260,848
Recharge of expenses for. back-office sérvices provided by group . _ o _
Lindertakings 2,287,803 2,288,071

.Director's fees:have been dlsciosed in Note 17 . The Gengral Manager, the Chief Firaricial Officer; Chief.Risk Officer and
Chief Legal and Compliance Officer .and the 1T & Adminisiration Manager are. considered by ‘the Compary to be Key
Management: Personnel. The:total payments to Key: Management Per__s_on_r_:el_ were. €354,526 (2022 €547,564).
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23. Related party disclosurés - continued
{b) Balarices with related parties
Receivables from:and payablés 10 refated parties are as foliows:.

_ 2023 2022
_ L Notes. € €
Receivables from related parties
Debtor arising. out of direct insurance operations
_graup undertakings
- parentcompany
Deposits held with parent
Intetest income due from parent
Cash'and cash equivalents held with parent

21,857,335 5,140,633
342,914 .t
81,500,000 79,000,000
966,540 515,553
114,415,310 70,485,834 .

.00 Ch & 0.

2023 2022
€ €
‘Payables to related parties
Creditor arising out of direct insurance-operations o
< group undertakings 39,552,683 18,076,043

- pareftcompariy 14 - 315,275,

Loans ad receivables are-unsecured and earn an average fixed interest of 2,5% (2022: 1.47%) {note 10). Cash depasits

held with greup:undertakings did not eam any interest during 2023.(2022: NIL.) (note*16), Al otfier oufstanding balances at

the reporting date are urisecured and interest free. Settlement will take place in cash.

There was no provision for doubtful debts:at the reporting date and no bad:debt expense during the yéar.

24, Dividends

2023 2022
g € €
Dividends paid o oidinary shares net 76,847,995 74,072,773

Dividends perordinary-share- 1,921.20 1,851,82
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT
To the members of RCI Insurance Limited

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of RCI Insurance Limited (the Company), set out on
pages 4 to 51, which comprise the statement of financial position as at 31 December 2023 and
the Income statements, statement of comprehensive income, statement of changes in equity
and statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the financial statements,
including material accounting policy information.

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements give a true and fair view of the financial
position of the Company as at 31 December 2023, and of its financial performance and its cash
flows for the year then ended in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards as
adopted by the EU (EU IFRSs) and have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of
the Companies Act (Cap. 386).

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (ISAs). Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for
the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Company
in accordance with the International Ethics Standards Board for Accountants’ Code of Ethics for
Professional Accountants together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of
the financial statements in accordance with the Accountancy Profession Directive issued in
terms of the Accountancy Profession Act (Cap. 281) (APA) in Malta, and we have fulfilled our
other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the IESBA Code. We
believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our opinion.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most
significance in our audit of the financial statements of the current period. These matters were
addressed in the context of our audit of the financial statements as a whole, and in forming our
opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters. Our description of
how our audit addressed the matter is provided in that context.

We have fulfilled the responsibilities described in the Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the
financial statements section of our report, including in relation to these matters. Accordingly, our
audit included the performance of procedures designed to report to our assessment of the risk
of material misstatement of the financial statements. The results of our audit procedures,
including the procedures performed to address the matters below, provide the basis for our
audit opinion on the accompanying financial statements.

Mazars Malta
Certified Public Accountants
VAT Reg No. MT15296002
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT
To the members of RCI Insurance Limited (continued)

Key Audit Matters (continued)

Insurance liabilities
Risk description

At 31 December 2023 the Companies had liability for remaining coverage and liability for
incurred claims as follows:

Liability for Remaining Coverage 39,985,127
Loss Component 83,132
Liability for Incurred Claims 24,375,615

The Liability for incurred claims is measured as the total of the expected fulfilment cash flows
relating to insurance events that occurred by the financial reporting date, which comprise
estimates of future cash flows, adjusted to reflect the time value of money and a risk adjustment
for non-financial risks. We have considered the estimate of future cash flows as a key audit
matter in view of the subjectivity surrounding the determination of the estimate, that is based on
claims data and an actuarial methodology which involves significant assumptions. Due to the
degree of such inherent estimation uncertainty underlying the estimate of future cash flows, the
amounts recognised in the statement of financial position may be different to those eventually
settled. Those differences may be material.

The liability for remaining coverage is measured as the total of the expected fulfilment cash
flows which comprise estimates of future cash flows within the contract boundary, adjusted to
reflect the time value of money and the associated financial risks, and risk adjustment for non-
financial risks. We have considered the measurement of liability for remaining coverage as a
key audit matter in view of the nature and subjectivity of the estimate, and its overall inherent
estimation uncertainty. The subjectivity involved relates mainly to the judgement involved in the
selection of actuarial assumptions. Due to the degree of such inherent estimation uncertainty,
the ultimate total settlement value may be different from the amounts provided, and the amount
of the Contractual Service Margin maybe different from the amounts recognized as profit in the
future. Those differences maybe material.

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

As part of our procedures, with the assistance of our actuarial specialists, we evaluated the
appropriateness of the Company’s assumptions applied in estimating the future cash flows and
the resulting estimate, for substantially all the liability for incurred claims and remaining
liabilities. We have remeasured the risk adjustment and discounting rate as per our expectations
based on industry knowledge and experience and compared these with the Company’s results.
In relation to claims data and other elements used in the estimates, we evaluated a sample to
assess their relevance and reliability based on the information available to the Company at the
financial reporting date.

Mazars Malta
Certified Public Accountants
VAT Reg No. MT15296002
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT
To the members of RCI Insurance Limited (continued)

Key Audit Matters (continued)

Insurance liabilities (continued)
How our audit addressed the key audit matter (continued)

We have also assessed the relevance of disclosures relating to the Company’s liability arising
from insurance contracts presented in the note 7 to the financial statements.

Other Information

The directors are responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the
information included in the annual report, other than the financial statements and the auditors’
report thereon. Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover this information, and we
do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon other than our reporting on other legal
and reporting requirements. In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our
responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other
information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in
the audit, or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

With respect to the Directors’ Report, we also considered whether the Directors’ Report includes

the disclosures required by Article 177 of the Maltese Companies Act (Cap. 386). Based on the

work we have performed, in our opinion:

» the information given in the directors’ report for the financial year for which the financial
statements are prepared is consistent with the financial statements; and

= the directors’ report has been prepared in accordance with the Maltese Companies Act
(Cap.386).

In addition, in light of the knowledge and understanding of the company and its environment
obtained in the course of the audit, we are required to report if we have identified material
misstatements in the directors’ report. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of the Directors

The directors are responsible for the preparation of the financial statements that give a true and
fair view in accordance with IFRS as adopted by the EU, and for such internal control as the
directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the directors are responsible for assessing the Company’s
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors either intend to
liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the company’s financial
reporting process.

Mazars Malta
Certified Public Accountants
VAT Reg No. MT15296002
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT
To the members of RCI Insurance Limited (continued)

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a
whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an
auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance
but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs will always detect a
material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to
influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional scepticism throughout the audit. We also:

= |dentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and
obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one
resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

= Consider the extent of compliance with those laws and regulations that directly affect the
financial statements, as part of our procedures on the related financial statements items. For
the remaining laws and regulations, we make enquiries of directors and other management,
and inspect correspondence with the regulatory authority as well as legal correspondence.
As with Fraud, there remains a higher risk of non-detection of other irregularities (whether or
not these relate to an area of law directly related to the financial statements), as these may
likewise involve collusion, forgery, international omissions, misrepresentations, or the
override of internal controls.

= Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing
an opinion on the effectiveness of the Company’s internal control.

= Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by the directors.

Mazars Malta
Certified Public Accountants
VAT Reg No. MT15296002
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT
To the members of RCI Insurance Limited (continued)

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements (continued)

= Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the going concern basis of
accounting and based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to
continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are
required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the financial
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions
are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However,
future events or conditions may cause the company to cease to continue as a going
concern.

= Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with the audit committee regarding, among other matters, the planned scope
and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the audit committee with a statement that we have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships
and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where
applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated the audit committee, we determine those matters that were of
most significance in the audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current period and
are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law
or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare
circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because
the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public
interest benefits of such communication.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements
Under the Maltese Companies Act (Cap. 386) we are required to report to you if, in our opinion:
= We have not received all the information and explanations we require for our audit.

= Adequate accounting records have not been kept, or that returns adequate for our audit
have not been received from branches not visited by us.

» The financial statements are not in agreement with the accounting records and returns.

Mazars Malta
Certified Public Accountants
VAT Reg No. MT15296002
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT
To the members of RCI Insurance Limited (continued)

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements (continued)
We have nothing to report to you in respect of these responsibilities.

Additionally, the financial statements have been properly prepared in accordance with the
requirements of the Insurance Business Act (Cap. 403).

Use of audit report

This report is made solely to the company’s members as a body in accordance with the
requirements of the Companies Act CAP 386 of the laws of Malta. Our audit work has been
undertaken so that we might state to the company’s members those matters that we are
required to state to them in an audit’'s report and for no other purpose. To the full extent
permitted by law we do not assume responsibility to anyone other that the company’s members
as a body for our audit work, for this report or for the opinions we have formed.

Appointment

We were appointed by the shareholders as auditors of RCI Insurance Limited on 10 September
2020, as for the year ended 31 December 2020. The period of total uninterrupted engagement
is four years.

Consistency with the additional report to those charged with Governance
Our opinion on our audit of the financial statements is consistent with the additional report to the
audit committee required to be issued by the Audit Regulation (as referred to in the Act);

Non-audit services
We have not provided any of the prohibited services as set out in the accountancy profession
act.

This copy of the audit report has been signed by
Anthony Attard (Partner) for and on behalf of

Mazars Malta

Certified Public Accountants

Office address:

The Watercourse, Level 2,

Mdina road, Zone 2, Central business district,
Birkirkara CBD2010 — Malta

19 April 2024
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